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— Consolidated Balance Sheet —
THE 77 BANK, LTD. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
March 31, 2025

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2025 2024 2025
ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks (Notes 4 and 28) ¥ 1,001,241 ¥ 1,288,993 $ 6,696,368
Call loans and bills bought 93,243 623,615
Debt purchased 800 800 5,350
Trading account securities (Note 5) 3,311 16,328 22,144
Money held in trust (Notes 6 and 28) 117,628 120,536 786,704
Investment securities
(Notes 5, 7, 11, 13, 28, 29 and 30) 2,919,208 3,077,129 19,523,863
Loans and bills discounted
(Notes 7, 13, 14, 28, 29 and 30) 6,170,579 5,854,516 41,269,254
Foreign exchanges (Notes 7 and 8) 8,080 5,178 54,039
Lease receivables and investments in leases
(Note 27) 25,392 22,614 169,823
Other assets (Notes 7, 13 and 29) 76,946 108,983 514,620
Tangible fixed assets (Notes 9, 10 and 18):
Buildings 6,776 7,028 45,318
Land 17,478 18,140 116,894
Lease assets 50 44 334
Construction in progress 1,799 919 12,031
Other tangible fixed assets 4,251 4,646 28,430
Intangible fixed assets (Note 10):
Software 5 10 33
Other intangible fixed assets 99 102 662
Asset for employees’ retirement benefits (Note 17) 5,801 6,119 38,797
Deferred tax assets (Note 25) 815 766 5,450
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and
guarantees (Notes 7, 11 and 30) 27,569 30,254 184,383
Reserve for loan losses (58,323) (62,015) (390,068)
TOTAL ¥10,422,756 ¥10,501,098 $69,708,105
LIABILITIES:
Deposits (Notes 13, 15 and 28) ¥ 8,960,892 ¥ 8,935,104 $59,931,059
Call money and bills sold 28,558 190,997
Payables under securities lending transactions (Note 13) 1,461 9,020 9,771
Borrowed money (Notes 13, 16 and 28) 681,086 808,703 4,555,149
Foreign exchanges (Note 8) 545 292 3,644
Borrowed money from trust account 2,136 1,037 14,285
Other liabilities (Notes 18 and 29) 123,038 69,431 822,886
Liability for employees’ retirement benefits (Note 17) 7,658 7,720 51,217
Reserve for stock-based benefits (Note 19) 908 931 6,072
Reserve for contingent losses 897 876 5,999
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 25) 14,058 36,024 94,020
Acceptances and guarantees (Note 11) 27,569 30,254 184,383
Total liabilities 9,848,811 9,899,398 65,869,522
EQUITY (Notes 19, 20 and 34):
Common stock—authorized, 268,800,000 shares;
issued, 76,655,746 shares in 2025 and 2024 24,658 24,658 164,914
Capital surplus 20,350 20,076 136,102
Retained earnings 462,009 433,580 3,089,947
Less: treasury stock—at cost, 2,462,980 shares and
2,569,419 shares in 2025 and 2024, respectively (6,230) (6,145) (41,666)
Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities (Note 5) 70,587 125,123 472,090
Deferred losses on derivatives under hedge accounting
(Note 29) _ (272) (95) (1,819)
Defined retirement benefit plans (Note 17) 2,842 4,503 19,007
Total equity 573,945 601,700 3,838,583
TOTAL ¥10,422,756 ¥10,501,098 $69,708,105

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



— Consolidated Statement of Income —
THE 77 BANK, LTD. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Year Ended March 31, 2025

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2025 2024 2025
INCOME:
Interest income:
Interest on loans and discounts ¥ 60,693 ¥ 52,039 $ 405,918
Interest and dividends on trading account and
investment securities 47,075 42177 314,840
Other 2,831 742 18,933
Trust fees (Note 31) 27 20 180
Fees and commissions (Notes 30 and 31) 23,705 21,410 158,540
Other operating income (Note 21) 16,852 14,470 112,707
Gains on sales of investment securities 16,537 14,555 110,600
Gains on sales of money held in trust 2,114 4,339 14,138
Gains on reversal of reserve for loan losses 851 5,691
Other income (Note 22) 864 796 5,778
Total income 171,553 150,552 1,147,358
EXPENSES:
Interest expense:
Interest on deposits 5,816 653 38,897
Interest on borrowings and rediscounts 764 777 5,109
Other 977 801 6,534
Fees and commissions 6,124 5,654 40,957
Other operating expenses (Note 23) 46,387 37,670 310,239
General and administrative expenses 52,524 54,384 351,284
Provision for reserve for loan losses 3,235
Other expenses (Notes 10 and 24) 2,692 3,169 18,004
Total expenses 115,288 106,346 771,054
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 56,265 44,206 376,304
INCOME TAXES (Note 25):
Current 16,089 14,308 107,604
Deferred 905 96 6,052
Total income taxes 16,994 14,404 113,657
NET INCOME 39,270 29,802 262,640
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT ¥ 39,270 ¥ 29,802 $ 262,640
Yen U.S. Dollars
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK (Note 33):
Basic net income ¥529.50 ¥402.40 $3.54
Cash dividends applicable to the year 175.00 122.50 1.17

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

— Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income —

THE 77 BANK, LTD. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Year Ended March 31, 2025

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2025 2024 2025
NET INCOME ¥ 39,270 ¥ 29,802 $ 262,640
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME (Note 26):
Unrealized (losses) gains on available-for-sale securities  (54,535) 65,203 (364,733)
Deferred losses on derivatives under hedge accounting (176 (29) (1,177
Defined retirement benefit plans (1,661 9,899 (11,108
Total other comprehensive (loss) income (56,373) 75,073 (377,026)
COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME ¥(17,103) ¥104,875 $(114,386)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO—
Owners of the parent ¥(17,103) ¥104,875 $(114,386)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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— Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity —
THE 77 BANK, LTD. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Year Ended March 31, 2025

Thousands Millions of Yen
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Number of Deferred
Shares of Unrealized  Losses on
Common Gainson  Derivatives  Defined

Stock Common Capital Retained ~ Treasury Available-for- under Hedge Retirement Total
Outstanding  Stock Surplus Earnings Stock  Sale Securities Accounting Benefit Plans  Equity

BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2023 73,986 ¥24,658 ¥20,075  ¥411,622 ¥(6,325)  ¥59,919 ¥ (66) ¥(5,396) ¥504,487
Net income attributable

to owners of the parent 29,802 29,802
Cash dividends, ¥105.00

per share (7,844) (7,844)
Purchase of treasury stock (2) @) (7)
Sales of treasury stock 101 187 187
Net change in the year 65,203 (29) 9,899 75,073

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2024 74,086 24,658 20,076 433,580 (6,145) 125,123 (95) 4,503 601,700

Net income attributable

to owners of the parent 39,270 39,270
Cash dividends, ¥145.00

per share (10,841) (10,841)
Purchase of treasury stock (130) (558) (558)
Sales of treasury stock 236 274 473 747
Net change in the year (54,535) (176) (1,661)  (56,373)

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2025 74,192  ¥24658  ¥20,350  ¥462,009 ¥(6,230) ¥70,587 ¥272)  ¥2842 ¥573,945

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Deferred
Unrealized  Losses on
Gainson  Derivatives  Defined
Common Capital Retained ~ Treasury Available-for- under Hedge Retirement Total
Stock Surplus  Earnings Stock  Sale Securities Accounting Benefit Plans  Equity

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2024 $164,914  $134269 $2,899,812  $(41,098) $836,831 $ (635 $30,116 $4,024,210
Net income attributable
to owners of the parent 262,640 262,640
Cash dividends, $0.96
per share (72,505) (72,505)
Purchase of treasury stock (3,731) (3,731)
Sales of treasury stock 1,832 3,163 4,995
Net change in the year (364,733) (1,177)  (11,108)  (377,026)
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2025 $164,914  §136,102 $3,089,947  $(41,666) $472,090  $(1,819) $19,007 $3,838,583

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



— Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows —
THE 77 BANK, LTD. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Year Ended March 31, 2025

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars
Millions of Yen (Note 1)
2025 2024 2025
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income before income taxes ¥ 56,265 ¥ 44206 $ 376,304
Adjustments for:
Income taxes—paid (17,093) (9,415) (114,319)
Depreciation and amortization 2,853 3,150 19,081
Losses on impairment of fixed assets 7 34 46
Net change in reserve for loan losses (3,692) 627 (24,692)
Net change in reserve for contingent losses 21 136 140
Net change in reserve for stock-based benefits (22) (10) (147)
Net change in asset for employees’ retirement benefits (1,336) (596) (8,935)
Net change in liability for employees’ retirement benefits (741) 460 (4,955)
Interest income (110,600) (94,959) (739,700)
Interest expense 7,558 2,231 50,548
Losses (gains) on investment securities—net 4,723 (608) 31,587
Gains on money held in trust—net (1,134) (2,308) (7,584)
Foreign exchange losses (gains)—net 2,733 (25,135) 18,278
Gains on sales and disposals of fixed assets—net (191) (53) (1,277)
Net change in loans and bills discounted (316,062) (297,128) (2,113,844)
Net change in deposits 25,787 49,313 172,465
Net change in borrowed money (except for subordinated loans) (127,617) 166,399 (853,511)
Net change in due from banks (except for the Bank of Japan) 8,837 2,046 59,102
Net change in call loans and bills bought (93,243) 3,199 (623,615)
Net change in call money and bills sold 28,558 (27,026) 190,997
Net change in payables under securities lending transactions (7,558) 7,726 (50,548)
Net change in trading account securities 13,017 3,882 87,058
Net change in foreign exchanges (assets) (2,902) 7,028 (19,408)
Net change in foreign exchanges (liabilities) 252 (45) 1,685
Net change in lease receivables and investments in leases (2,777) (1,666) (18,572)
Net change in borrowed money from trust account 1,098 1,037 7,343
Interest received 111,455 94,869 745,418
Interest paid (5,749) (2,230) (38,449)
Other—net 90,370 (28,886) 604,400
Total adjustments (393,446) (147,928)  (2,631,393)
Net cash used in operating activities—(Forward) ¥ (337,181) ¥ (103,721) $(2,255,089)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of investment securities (595,298) (544,082) (3,981,393)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities 354,660 294,734 2,371,990
Proceeds from maturity of investment securities 309,859 331,619 2,072,358
Increase in money held in trust (5,000)
Proceeds from dispositions of money held in trust 2,036 5,940 13,616
Purchases of tangible fixed assets (3,143) (3,403) (21,020)
Proceeds from sales of tangible fixed assets 993 464 6,641
Purchases of intangible fixed assets (11) (73)
Payment for execution of asset retirement obligations (86)
Net cash provided by investing activities 69,096 80,187 462,118
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of treasury stock (558) (7) (3,731)
Proceeds from sales of treasury stock 548 3,665
Dividends paid (10,818) (7,830) (72,351)
Net cash used in financing activities (10,828) (7,837) (72,418)
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1) 35 (6)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (278,914) (31,336)  (1,865,395)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,279,596 1,310,932 8,558,025
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR (Note 4) ¥1,000,682 ¥1,279596 $ 6,692,629

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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— Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements —

THE 77 BANK, LTD. AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
Year Ended March 31, 2025

1. BASIS OF PRESENTING CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the provisions set
forth in the Japanese Financial Instruments and
Exchange Act and its related accounting regulations and
the Enforcement Regulation for the Banking Law of Japan
(the “Banking Law”), and in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Japan, which are different
in certain respects as to the application and disclosure
requirements of International Financial Reporting
Standards.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements,
certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been
made to the consolidated financial statements issued
domestically in order to present them in a form which is
more familiar to readers outside Japan. In addition,
certain reclassifications have been made to the 2024
consolidated financial statements to conform to the
classifications used in 2025.

In accordance with the Japanese Financial Instruments
and Exchange Act and other relevant regulations, all
Japanese yen figures in the consolidated financial
statements have been rounded down to the nearest
million yen, except for per share data. Accordingly, the
total of each account may not be equal to the combined
total of individual items. Also, U.S. dollar amounts have
been rounded down to the nearest thousand dollars.

The consolidated financial statements are stated in
Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which The
77 Bank, Ltd. (the “Bank”) is incorporated and operates.
The translations of Japanese yen amounts into U.S.
dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of
readers outside Japan and have been made at the rate of
¥149.52 to U.S.$1, the approximate rate of exchange as
of March 31, 2025. Such translations should not be
construed as representations that the Japanese yen
amounts could be converted into U.S. dollars at that or
any other rate.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

a. Consolidation—The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of the Bank and its significant
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Companies”). There were
10 (nine in 2024) consolidated subsidiaries as of March
31, 2025.

Under the control and influence concepts, those
companies in which the Bank, directly or indirectly, is able
to exercise control over operations are fully consolidated.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation. All material
unrealized profits included in assets resulting from
transactions within the Companies are eliminated in
consolidation.

(1) Scope of consolidation

Consolidated Subsidiaries

77 Business With Co., Ltd. has been included in the
scope of consolidation from the year ended March 31,
2025, since it was newly incorporated.

Unconsolidated Subsidiaries

77 NEXT CONSULTING PTE. LTD.

77 Capital Co., Ltd.

77 New Business Investment Limited Partnership

77 Strategic Investment Limited Partnership

77 Capital Investment Limited Partnership 2

77 Strategic Investment Limited Partnership 2

77 Partners Investment Limited Partnership 1

Unconsolidated subsidiaries are excluded from the
scope of consolidation because they are not material to
the consolidated financial statements in terms of total
assets, income, net income (corresponding to the Bank’s
share), retained earnings (corresponding to the Bank’s
share) and accumulated other comprehensive income
(corresponding to the Bank’s share).

77 NEXT CONSULTING PTE. LTD. was newly
established and became included in the non-consolidated
subsidiaries from the year ended March 31, 2025.
Companies Not Deemed as Subsidiaries While the
Majority of Their Voting Rights Are Held by the Bank
on Its Own Account

ORIl GIKEN LTD.

CADCAM Co., Ltd.

77 PE3 Co., Ltd.

Yonezawa Seimitsu Co., Ltd.

These companies are not treated as subsidiaries
because the Bank’s unconsolidated subsidiaries engaged
in investment and related businesses made investments
in these companies for investment and fostering
purposes, not for the purpose of making them
subsidiaries.

(2) Equity method

Unconsolidated Subsidiaries Accounted for by the
Equity Method

Not applicable

Affiliates Accounted for by the Equity Method

Not applicable

Unconsolidated Subsidiaries Not Accounted for by
the Equity Method

77 NEXT CONSULTING PTE. LTD.

77 Capital Co., Ltd.

77 New Business Investment Limited Partnership

77 Strategic Investment Limited Partnership

77 Capital Investment Limited Partnership 2

77 Strategic Investment Limited Partnership 2

77 Partners Investment Limited Partnership 1

These companies are excluded from the scope of
equity method accounting because they are not material
to the consolidated financial statements in terms of net
income (corresponding to the Bank’s share), retained
earnings (corresponding to the Bank’s share) and
accumulated other comprehensive income
(corresponding to the Bank’s share).

77 NEXT CONSULTING PTE. LTD. was newly
established and became included in the non-consolidated
subsidiaries not accounted for by the equity method from
the year ended March 31, 2025.

Affiliates Not Accounted for by the Equity Method
Not applicable

b.Business Combinations—Business combinations are
accounted for using the purchase method. Acquisition-
related costs, such as advisory fees or professional fees,



are accounted for as expenses in the periods in which the
costs are incurred. If the initial accounting for a business
combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting
period in which the business combination occurs, an
acquirer shall report in its financial statements provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. During the measurement period, which shall
not exceed one year from the acquisition, the acquirer
shall retrospectively adjust the provisional amounts
recognized at the acquisition date to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that
existed as of the acquisition date and that would have
affected the measurement of the amounts recognized as
of that date. Such adjustments shall be recognized as if
the accounting for the business combination had been
completed at the acquisition date. A parent’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary might change if the parent
purchases or sells ownership interests in its subsidiary.
The carrying amount of noncontrolling interest is adjusted
to reflect the change in the parent’s ownership interest in
its subsidiary while the parent retains its controlling
interest in its subsidiary. Any difference between the fair
value of the consideration received or paid and the
amount by which the noncontrolling interest is adjusted is
accounted for as capital surplus as long as the parent
retains control over its subsidiary.

c. Cash and Cash Equivalents—For the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash and amounts due from the
Bank of Japan.

d. Trading Account Securities, Investment Securities
and Money Held in Trust—Securities other than
investments in affiliates are classified into three categories,
based principally on the Companies’ intent, as follows: (1)
trading account securities, which are held for the purpose
of earning capital gains in the near term, are reported at
fair value and the related unrealized gains and losses are
included in earnings; (2) held-to-maturity debt securities,
which are expected to be held to maturity with the positive
intent and ability to hold to maturity, are reported at
amortized cost; and (3) available-for-sale securities, which
are not classified as either of the aforementioned
securities, are reported at fair value with unrealized gains
and losses, net of applicable taxes, reported in a separate
component of equity; however, equity securities, etc. which
do not have a market price are reported at cost determined
by the moving-average method.

The cost of trading account securities and available-for-
sale securities sold is determined based on the moving-
average method.

In addition, investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries
not accounted for by the equity method are reported at
cost determined by the moving-average method.

For other-than-temporary declines in fair value,
investment securities are reduced to net realizable value
by a charge to income.

Securities included in money held in trust are also
classified and accounted for using the same method as
above.

The components of trust assets are accounted for based
on the standard appropriate for each asset type.
Instruments held in trust for trading purposes are recorded
at fair value and unrealized gains and losses are recorded
in other income/expenses. Instruments held in trust
classified as available-for-sale are recorded at fair value
with the corresponding unrealized gains/losses recorded
directly in a separate component of equity. Instruments

held in trust classified as held to maturity are carried at
amortized cost.

e. Tangible Fixed Assets—Tangible fixed assets are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and gains
deferred on the sale and replacement of certain assets.
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets, except for lease
assets, is mainly computed using the declining-balance
method at rates based on the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The range of useful lives is principally from 5
to 31 years for buildings and from 4 to 20 years for
equipment. Lease assets under finance lease
transactions, in which substantial ownership is not
deemed to have been transferred, are depreciated using
the straight-line method over the lease term. The salvage
value is zero or the guaranteed amounts if specified in
the lease contracts (see Note 2.0).

f. Intangible Fixed Assets—The amortization of
intangible fixed assets is calculated using the straight-line
method. Capitalized costs of computer software
developed/obtained for internal use are amortized using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
five years.

g. Long-Lived Assets—The Companies review their
long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of
an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss would be recognized if the carrying
amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of
the undiscounted future cash flows expected to result
from the continued use and eventual disposition of the
asset or asset group. The impairment loss would be
measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of
the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of the discounted cash flows (“DCFs”) from the
continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or the
net selling price at disposition.

h. Foreign Currency Items—Assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies held by the Bank at
year-end are translated into Japanese yen at the current
exchange rates in effect at each consolidated balance
sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are recognized in
the fiscal periods in which they occur.

i. Reserve for Loan Losses—The Bank determines the
amount of the reserve for loan losses by means of
management’s judgment and assessment of future losses
based on internal rules for write offs and provisions.

For loans to borrowers classified as legally bankrupt or
virtually bankrupt, the Bank fully provides the net amount
of loans and estimated collectible amounts by collateral
or guarantees. Regarding loans to borrowers classified as
possibly bankrupt, a specific reserve is provided to the
necessary extent for the net amount of loans and
estimated collectible amounts by collateral or guarantees.

For large debtors who are possibly bankrupt and
debtors requiring special attention, if the cash flows from
collection of the principal and interest can be reasonably
estimated, the reserve is provided based on the difference
between the relevant cash flows discounted by the initial
contractual interest rates and the carrying amounts of the
loans.

The reserve for other loan loss is recorded principally
at the amount of estimated losses over the next two or
three years. Estimated losses are determined by
calculating a loss rate based on the average of actual

THE 77 BANK FINANCIAL REPORT



loss rate over the past certain period, which is calculated
with credit loss experience over two or three years.
Adjustments are to be made as necessary in light of
future outlook and other factors.

All the loans are assessed by sales related department
in accordance with the self-assessment standard and the
results are audited by asset audit department
independent from the sales related department.

The Bank’s subsidiaries determine the reserve for loan
losses based on the actual loss rate or estimated collectible
amounts in accordance with the self-assessment standard.

(Notes)

1. Debtor classification is defined as below in compliance
with the classification provided in “Practical Guideline
on Self-Assessment of Assets and Audit of Bad Debts
and Reserve for Loan Losses of Banks and Other
Financial Institutions” (the Japanese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “JICPA”) Special
Audit Committee Report No. 4 for Banks and Other
Financial Institutions issued on April 14, 2022), that is,
“normal debtors,” “debtors requiring caution,” “possibly
bankrupt debtors,” “virtually bankrupt debtors” and
“legally bankrupt debtors.”

Category Criteria

Legally Debtors who are legally or formally

bankrupt bankrupt

Virtually Debtors who are virtually bankrupt,

bankrupt experiencing serious financial difficulty
with no prospect of a turnaround,
although there are no existence of facts
of legal or formal bankruptcy

Possibly Debtors who are in financial difficulty

bankrupt and likely to become bankrupt in the
future, although they are not currently
bankrupt

Caution Debtors who have issues concerning
lending conditions, debtors who have
issues concerning the status of
fulfilment of obligations or debtors who
are in the red, experiencing sluggish or
unstable performances

Special Of the debtors classified as caution,
attention  those whose debts, either partially or

wholly, require special attention

Normal Debtors whose performance is

favorable and who are considered to
have no specific issues regarding
financial conditions

2. The loss rate is in principle defined as the average rate
of bad debts for a total of ten calculation periods
consisting of the recent five calculation periods on a
consolidated fiscal year-end basis and the recent five
calculation periods on an interim consolidated fiscal
year-end basis, but comparisons with the average rate
of bad debts for a total of four calculation periods
consisting of the recent two calculation periods on a
consolidated fiscal year-end basis and the recent two
calculation periods on an interim consolidated fiscal
year-end basis are also taken into account in the
calculation. Also, necessary adjustments are made by
referring to the average rate of bad debts for a number
of calculation periods to appropriately incorporate the
risk during the recession period.

J- Reserve for Stock-Based Benefits—Reserve for
stock-based benefits is provided for the grants of the
Bank’s shares to directors, etc. in accordance with the
stock grant program based on the estimated stock-based
benefits liabilities as of the fiscal year end.

k. Reserve for Contingent Losses—Reserve for
contingent losses is provided for the future estimated
payments of burden money to the Credit Guarantee
Corporations based on the historical experience of
subrogation.

I. Employees’ Retirement and Pension Plans—In
calculation of projected benefit obligations, expected
benefits are attributed to periods on a benefit formula
basis. Treatment of prior service cost and actuarial gains
and losses is as follows:

Prior service cost is charged to expenses when
incurred.

Unrecognized actuarial gains and losses are amortized
by the straight-line method from the following fiscal year
after the fiscal year when they were incurred over a
definite period (10 years) with the employees’ average
remaining service period when incurred.

Consolidated subsidiaries apply a shortcut method
whereby the amount of the retirement benefits required to
be paid if all the employees voluntarily retired at the end
of the fiscal year is regarded as projected benefit
obligations in determining the liability for employees’
retirement benefits and net periodic retirement benefit
costs.

m. Asset Retirement Obligations—The asset retirement
obligation is recognized as the sum of the DCFs required
for the future asset retirement and is recorded in the
period in which the obligation is incurred if a reasonable
estimate can be made. If a reasonable estimate of the
asset retirement obligation cannot be made in the period
the asset retirement obligation is incurred, the liability
should be recognized when a reasonable estimate of the
asset retirement obligation can be made. Upon initial
recognition of a liability for an asset retirement obligation,
an asset retirement cost is capitalized by increasing the
carrying amount of the related fixed asset by the amount
of the liability. The asset retirement cost is subsequently
allocated to expense through depreciation over the
remaining useful life of the asset. Over time, the liability is
accreted to its present value each period. Any subsequent
revisions to the timing or the amount of the original
estimate of undiscounted cash flows are reflected as an
increase or a decrease in the carrying amount of the
liability and the capitalized amount of the related asset
retirement cost.

n. Accounting for Significant Revenue and
Expenses—On March 31, 2020, the Accounting
Standards Board of Japan (“ASBJ”) issued ASBJ
Statement No. 29, “Accounting Standard for Revenue
Recognition.” The Bank has applied this standard and
recognizes revenue when control of a promised good or
service is transferred to a customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Bank expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services.

o.Leases

As a lessee

Finance lease transactions are capitalized to recognize
lease assets and lease obligations in the consolidated
balance sheet.



As a lessor

All finance leases that are deemed to transfer ownership
of the leased property to the lessee are recognized as
lease receivables, and all finance leases that are deemed
not to transfer ownership of the leased property to the
lessee are recognized as investments in leases.

p. Income Taxes—The provision for income taxes is
computed based on the pretax income included in the
consolidated statement of income. The asset and liability
approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and
liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and
the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are
measured by applying currently enacted tax laws to the
temporary differences.

q. Derivatives and Hedging Activities—It is the Bank’s
policy to use derivative financial instruments
(“derivatives”) primarily for the purpose of reducing
market risks associated with its assets and liabilities. The
Bank also utilizes derivatives to meet the needs of its
clients while entering into derivatives as a part of its
trading activities. The Bank enters into interest rate swaps
and interest rate swaptions as a means of hedging its
interest rate risk on certain loans and investment
securities and to meet the needs of its clients. The Bank
also enters into currency swaps, foreign exchange
forward contracts, and currency options to hedge foreign
currency exchange risk associated with its assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and to meet
the needs of its clients.

Derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities
and measured at fair value. Gains or losses on derivative
transactions are recognized in the consolidated statement
of income. If derivatives qualify for hedge accounting
because of high correlation and effectiveness between
the hedging instruments and the hedged items, the gains
or losses on derivatives are deferred until maturity of the
hedged transactions.

The interest rate swaps which qualify for hedge
accounting and meet specific matching criteria are not
remeasured at market value, but the differential paid or
received under the swap agreements is recognized and
included in interest expense or income (special matching
criteria).

r. Per Share Information—Basic net income per share is
computed by dividing net income attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding for the period, retroactively
adjusted for stock splits or share consolidation.

Cash dividends per share presented in the consolidated
statement of income are dividends applicable to the
respective years including dividends to be paid after the
end of the year.

s. Unapplied Accounting Standards, Etc.—On
September 13, 2024, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement
No. 34, “Accounting Standard for Leases,” ASBJ
Guidance No. 33, “Implementation Guidance on
Accounting Standard for Leases,” and other related
revisions including accounting standards, implementation
guidance, practical solutions, and transferred guidance.

These standards and guidance prescribe the
accounting treatment for recording assets and liabilities
for all leases held by lessees in the same manner as
international accounting standards.

The Bank plans to apply these standards and guidance
from the beginning of the year starting April 1, 2027, and
is currently evaluating the impact of this application.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Reserve for Loan Losses

Loans and bills discounted and related items constitute a

relatively large portion of the total assets in the

consolidated balance sheet, and recording of reserve for

loan losses has a significant impact on the financial

position and results of operations. Therefore, the Bank

considers reserve for loan losses as a significant

accounting estimate.

(1) Amount recorded in the consolidated financial
statements as of March 31, 2025 and 2024

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025
Reserve for loan losses ¥58,323  ¥62,015  $390,068

(2) Information about the details of significant accounting
estimates for the identified item

i. Computation method

The method of computing reserve for loan losses is
stated in “i. Reserve for Loan Losses” under Note 2,
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.”

ii. Main assumptions
Main assumptions are the future prospects used in
the assessment of debtor classification.

Debtor classification is assessed by
comprehensively taking into account profitability
projections, reasonableness of management
improvement plans, status of support from financial
institutions, etc., based on the characteristics of the
industry to which the debtor belongs, after verifying
the debtor’s ability to repay the debts based on the
financial position, cash management, cash flows,
etc. of the debtor and confirming the lending
conditions and the status of its fulfilment.

In addition, the Bank makes an assumption that
the direct impact of COVID-19 has diminished, but
the indirect impact on the credit risk of debtors, such
as the deterioration of earnings by COVID-19 due to
a termination of public support and labor shortage
has not yet recovered, and will remain uncertain
and continue for a certain period of time. Based on
such assumption, with respect to debtors of certain
COVID-19-related restructured loans, the loss rate
is deemed to be equivalent to that of debtors who
are downgraded in classification in terms of higher
uncertainties about future projection and other
factors, and a reserve for loan losses is recorded
accordingly.

For some project finance loans, the Bank records
reserve for loan losses on the basis of estimated
cash flows, etc. concerning the collection of loan
principal and receipt of interest assuming that the
profitability of those projects will deteriorate to a
certain extent due to risks such as a sharp rise in
procurement costs.

.Impact on the consolidated financial statements for
the following fiscal year

If the assumptions used in the initial estimates
change due to changes in the debtors’
performances, this may have a significant impact on
reserve for loan losses in the consolidated financial
statements for the following fiscal year.
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4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year and cash and due from banks in the
consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2025 and
2024, was as follows:
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025

¥1,001,241 ¥1,288993  $6,696,368

Cash and due from banks
Due from banks, excluding
due from the Bank of Japan (559)  (9,396) (3,738)

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of year

¥1,000,682 ¥1,279,596 $6,692,629

5. TRADING ACCOUNT SECURITIES AND
INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Trading account securities as of March 31, 2025 and
2024, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025
National government bonds ¥ 25 ¥ 52 § 167
Local government bonds 3,286 10,275 21,976
Other securities 5,999
Total ¥3,311 ¥16,328 $22,144

Investment securities as of March 31, 2025 and 2024,
consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025
National government bonds ¥ 465,022 ¥ 385,773 $ 3,110,098
Local government bonds 590,711 792,107 3,950,715
Corporate bonds 674,748 718,304 4,512,760
Equity securities 191,857 208,626 1,283,152
Other securities 996,868 972,317 6,667,121
Total ¥2,919,208 ¥3,077,129 $19,523,863

Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries in the
amount of ¥1,506 million ($10,072 thousand) and ¥25
million, and investment in interest in partnership in the
amount of ¥6,745 million ($45,111 thousand) and ¥6,216
million are included in the above equity securities and
other securities as of March 31, 2025 and 2024,
respectively.

The carrying amounts and aggregate fair values of
securities as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, were as
follows:

Securities below include trading account securities and
investment securities:

Millions of Yen
2025
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

Securities classified as:
Trading ¥ 3M
Available-for-sale:

Equity securiies ¥ 61,003 ¥127,412 ¥ 704 187,711
Debt securities 1,790,201 67 63,762 1,726,507
Other securities 951,639 53,486 20,838 984,286
Held-to-maturity 3,974 92 3,881

Millions of Yen
2024
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

Securities classified as:
Trading ¥ 16,328
Available-for-sale:

Equity securities ¥ 60,723 ¥145532 ¥ 294 205,961
Debt securities 1,930,031 688 35,542 1,895,177
Other securities 901,098 76,257 16,285 961,070
Held-to-maturity 1,008 13 995
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2025
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

Securities classified as:
Trading $ 22144
Available-for-sale:

Equity securities § 407,992  $852,140 $ 4,708 1,255,424
Debt securities 11,972,986 448 426,444 11,546,997
Other securities 6,364,626 357,718 139,365 6,582,972

Held-to-maturity 26,578 615 25,956

Securities, other than trading account securities
(excluding equity securities, etc. and investments in
partnerships which do not have a market price), whose
fair value significantly declined compared with the
acquisition cost and whose fair value is not considered
likely to recover to their acquisition cost, are written down
to the respective fair value. The related losses on
revaluation are charged to income for the fiscal year.

Impairment losses were recognized for available-for-
sale securities in the amount of ¥37 million ($247
thousand), consisting of ¥34 million ($227 thousand) on
equity securities and ¥2 million ($13 thousand) on other
securities for the year ended March 31, 2025, and ¥103
million on other securities for the year ended March 31,
2024.

The criteria for determining whether the fair value has
“significantly declined” are defined based on the asset
classification of the issuer in the internal standards for
asset quality self-assessment as follows:

(a) Normal issuers: Fair value declined by 50% or more

of the acquisition cost or fair value declined between
30% and 50% and average fair value during the
past one month declined by 50% or more (30% or
more for issuers who have credit risk more than a
certain level).

(b) Caution issuers: Fair value declined by 30% or more
of the acquisition cost.

(c) Legally bankrupt, virtually bankrupt, and possibly
bankrupt issuers: Fair value is lower than the
acquisition cost.

Caution issuers represent debtors who require careful
management going forward, and normal issuers represent
debtors other than legally bankrupt, virtually bankrupt,
possibly bankrupt, and caution issuers.

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities for
the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, were
¥362,172 million ($2,422,231 thousand) and ¥290,006
million, respectively. Gross realized gains and losses on
these sales, computed on a moving average cost basis,
were ¥19,304 million ($129,106 thousand) and ¥19,897
million ($133,072 thousand), respectively, for the year
ended March 31, 2025, and ¥14,946 million and ¥10,737
million, respectively, for the year ended March 31, 2024.




Unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities as of
March 31, 2025 and 2024, consisted of the following:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2025 2024 2025

Valuation differences:
Available-for-sale securities ¥ 95,467 ¥170,164 $ 638,489

Available-for-sale money
held in trust

Deferred tax liabilities

Unrealized gains on available-
for-sale securities

5,782
(30,663)

7,788
(52,829)

38,670
(205,076)

¥70,587 ¥125,123 $ 472,090

6. MONEY HELD IN TRUST

The carrying amounts and aggregate fair values of money
held in trust as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, were as
follows:

Millions of Yen
2025
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Money held in trust
classified as:
Trading ¥ 90,264
Available-for-sale  ¥21,581 ¥5,782 27,364
Total ¥21,581 ¥5,782 ¥117,628
Millions of Yen
2024
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Money held in trust
classified as:
Trading ¥ 91,166
Available-for-sale  ¥21,581 ¥7,788 29,369
Total ¥21,581 ¥7,788 ¥120,536
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2025
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Money held in trust
classified as:
Trading $603,691
Available-for-sale $144,335 $38,670 183,012
Total $144,335 $38,670 $786,704

Investment securities constituting trust properties of
other money held in trust, whose fair value significantly
declined compared with the acquisition cost and whose
fair value is not considered likely to recover to their
acquisition cost, are written down to the respective fair
value.

No impairment loss was recognized for money held in
trust for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024.

7. LOANS AND BILLS DISCOUNTED

Loans and bills discounted as of March 31, 2025 and
2024, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025
Bills discounted ¥ 2813¥ 55089 18,813
Loans on bills 114,742 122,631 767,402
Loans on deeds 5,292,648 5,006,416 35,397,592
Overdrafts 760,374 719,960 5,085,433
Total ¥6,170,579 ¥5,854,516 $41,269,254

Bills Discounted

Bills discounted are accounted for as financial
transactions in accordance with “Treatment of Accounting
and Auditing of Application of Accounting Standard for
Financial Instruments in the Banking Industry” (JICPA
Industry Committee Practical Guideline No. 24). The
Bank has rights to sell or pledge these bills discounted.
The total of the face value of bills discounted was ¥2,813
million ($18,813 thousand) and ¥5,508 million as of
March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.
Non-performing Loans

Loans based on the Banking Act and the Act on
Emergency Measures for the Revitalization of the
Financial Functions are as follows:

Loans are comprised of items recorded in the accounts
of corporate bonds included in “Investment securities” in
the consolidated balance sheet (limited to those for which
redemption of the principal and payment of interest is
guaranteed in whole or in part and those issued through
private placement of securities (as provided by paragraph
3 of Article 2 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange
Act)); loans and bills discounted; foreign exchanges
(assets); accrued interest and suspense payments
included in “Other assets,” customers’ liabilities for
acceptances and guarantees; and securities used in
securities lending transactions, if such transactions are
performed as described in the accompanying note
(limited to those under a loan-for-use or lease contract).

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025
Loans to bankrupt and

quasi-bankrupt borrowers ¥ 11,321 ¥ 12,591 $ 75,715
Doubtful loans 81,843 74,487 547,371
Substandard loans 32,364 32,496 216,452

Delinquent loans past due
three months or more 2,433 1,242 16,272
Restructured loans 29,930 31,254 200,173
Sub-total 125,530 119,575 839,553
Normal loans 6,129,815 5,824,163 40,996,622
Total ¥6,255,346 ¥5,943,739 $41,836,182

Loans to bankrupt and quasi-bankrupt borrowers are
loans to borrowers who have fallen into bankruptcy due
to initiation of bankruptcy proceedings, reorganization
proceedings, petition for commencement of rehabilitation
proceedings, or other reasons, and similar loans.

Doubtful loans are loans for which the borrower has not
yet entered into bankruptcy, but the financial condition
and business performance of the borrower have
deteriorated and it is highly probable that the principal
cannot be collected and interest cannot be received as
agreed, and those that do not fall under loans to bankrupt
and quasi-bankrupt borrowers.
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Delinquent loans past due three months or more are
loans with principal or interest unpaid for three months or
more from the day after the agreed-upon payment date,
and those that do not fall under loans to bankrupt and
quasi-bankrupt borrowers or doubtful loans.

Restructured loans are loans that provide certain
concessions favorable to the borrowers with the intent of
facilitating the borrowers’ restructuring or otherwise
supporting them, such as by reducing or exempting
interest, postponing principal or interest payments,
releasing credits, or providing other benefits to the
borrowers. Restructured loans exclude loans to bankrupt
and quasi-bankrupt borrowers, doubtful loans, and
delinquent loans past due three months or more.

Normal loans are those that do not contain any problem
with the borrowers’ financial conditions or business
performance, and are not classified in any of the above
categories.

The amounts of the above loans are before deducting
reserve for loan losses.

8. FOREIGN EXCHANGES

Foreign exchange assets and liabilities as of March 31,
2025 and 2024, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025
Assets
Due from foreign correspondent
accounts ¥8,080 ¥5178 $54,039
Total ¥8,080 ¥5178 $54,039
Liabilities
Foreign exchange bills sold ¥ 20 ¥ 40 $ 133
Foreign exchange bills payable 524 252 3,504
Total ¥545 ¥292  $3,644

9. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

The accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed assets as
of March 31, 2025 and 2024, amounted to ¥86,755 million
($580,223 thousand) and ¥85,388 million, respectively.

As of March 31, 2025 and 2024, deferred gains for tax
purposes of ¥7,209 million ($48,214 thousand) and ¥7,211
million, respectively, on tangible fixed assets sold and
replaced with similar assets have been deducted from the
cost of newly acquired tangible fixed assets.

10. LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Bank recognized impairment losses of ¥7 million
($46 thousand) and ¥34 million on unused facilities for
the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

The impairment losses were composed of ¥5 million
($33 thousand) on buildings and ¥2 million ($13 thousand)
on other intangible fixed assets for the year ended March
31, 2025, and ¥34 million on buildings for the year ended
March 31, 2024.

For the purpose of testing for impairment, the Bank
recognizes each individual branch office as a cash-
generating unit for which it continues to manage and
monitor identifiable cash flows. Branch offices to be
closed and facilities not in operation are individually
assessed for impairment. Subsidiaries recognize each

company as a cash-generating unit. An impairment loss
would be recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or
asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future
cash flows expected to result from the continued use and
eventual disposition of the asset or asset group.

The impairment loss would be measured as the amount
by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of the DCFs from
the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or
the net selling price at disposition. The DCFs were
calculated using discount rates of 12.2% for the years
ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, and the net selling price
was determined by quotation from a third-party vendor.

11. CUSTOMERS’ LIABILITIES FOR ACCEPTANCES
AND GUARANTEES

All contingent liabilities arising from acceptances and
guarantees are reflected in “Acceptances and
guarantees.” “Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and
guarantees” are shown as assets, representing the
Bank’s right to receive indemnity from the applicants.
The amount of guarantee obligations for privately
placed corporate bonds included in investment securities
as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, was ¥40,257 million
($269,241 thousand) and ¥44,381 million, respectively.

12. TRUSTS WITH CONTRACT CLAUSE FOR
COVERING PRINCIPAL

The principal amount of trusts with a contract clause
covering the principal as of March 31, 2025 and 2024,
was as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025
Money trusts ¥2136  ¥1,037 $14,285

13. ASSETS PLEDGED
Assets pledged as collateral and their relevant liabilities
as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2025 2024 2025

Assets pledged as collateral:

Investment securities ¥538,461 ¥633,383 $3,601,264

Loans and bills discounted 469,276 502,153 3,318,550
Other assets 144 144 963
Relevant liabilities to the above assets:
Deposits 43,134 35,502 288,483
Payables under securities
lending transactions 1,461 9,020 9,771
Borrowed money 671,800 796,800 4,493,044

In addition to the above, the following assets were
offered as collateral for exchange settlement transactions,
or as substitutes for future transaction initial margin and
others:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025
Investment securities ¥58,646 $392,228
Other assets 100 ¥50,100 668




The amounts of cash collateral paid for financial
instruments and guarantee deposits for leased tangible
fixed assets included in other assets were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025
Cash collateral paid for
financial instruments ¥3,919 ¥5,671 $26,210
Guarantee deposits for leased
tangible fixed assets 94 95 628

14. LOAN COMMITMENTS

Contracts of overdraft facilities and loan commitments are
contracts with customers to lend up to the prescribed
limits in response to customers’ applications for a loan, as
long as there is no violation of any condition within the
contracts. As of March 31, 2025, the unused amount of
such contracts totaled ¥1,676,658 million ($11,213,603
thousand), of which amounts with original agreement
terms of less than one year were ¥1,584,124 million
($10,594,729 thousand). As of March 31, 2024, the
unused amount of such contracts totaled ¥1,646,400
million, of which amounts with original agreement terms
of less than one year were ¥1,546,972 million.

Since many of the commitments expire without being
drawn upon, the unused amount does not necessarily
represent a future cash requirement. Most of these
contracts have conditions allowing the Companies to
refuse customers’ applications for a loan or decrease the
contract limits based on proper reasons (e.g., changes in
financial situation, deterioration in customers’
creditworthiness). At the inception of the contracts, the
Companies obtain collateral real estate, securities, etc., if
considered to be necessary. Subsequently, the
Companies perform a periodic review of the customers’
business results based on internal rules and take
necessary measures to reconsider conditions in contracts
and require additional collateral and guarantees.

15. DEPOSITS

Deposits as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, consisted of the
following:
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025
¥ 245808¥% 281,536 $ 1,643,980
6,524,676 6,335,036 43,637,479

Current deposits
Ordinary deposits

Deposits at notice 8,539 7,442 57,109
Time deposits 1,798,204 1,852,957 12,026,511
Negotiable certificates of deposit 144,930 232,970 969,301
Other deposits 238,733 225,161 1,596,662

Total ¥8,960,892 ¥8,935,104 $59,931,059

16. BORROWED MONEY

As of March 31, 2025 and 2024, the weighted-average
annual interest rates applicable to borrowed money were
0.008% and 0.006%, respectively.

Borrowed money consisted of borrowings from the
Bank of Japan and other financial institutions. Annual
maturities of borrowed money as of March 31, 2025, were
as follows:

Year Ending March 31 Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2026 ¥144,965 $ 969,535
2027 193,173 1,291,954
2028 342,043 2,287,607
2029 374 2,501
2030 58 387
2031 and thereafter 471 3,150

Total ¥681,086 $4,555,149

17. LIABILITY FOR EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT
BENEFITS

The Bank has severance payment plans as defined
benefit plans consisting of corporate pension fund plans
and lump-sum retirement payment plans for employees.
In addition, the Bank has established corporate defined
contribution pension plans as defined contribution plans.
The Bank has also established a retirement benefit trust
under the lump-sum retirement payment plan.

The consolidated subsidiaries have lump-sum
retirement payment plans as defined benefit plans and
corporate defined contribution pension plans as defined
contribution plans. For lump-sum retirement payment
plans, the consolidated subsidiaries calculate liability for
retirement benefit and retirement benefit costs using a
shortcut method.

(1) The changes in projected benefit obligations for the
years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, were as
follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025

Balance at beginning of year ¥59,598 ¥68,124 $398,595
Service cost 1,250 1,610 8,360
Interest cost 914 434 6,112
Actuarial losses (gains) 331 (7,484) 2,213
Benefits paid (3,695) (3,261) (24,712)
Others 175 174 1,170

Balance at end of year ¥58,574 ¥59,598 $391,746

(2) The changes in plan assets for the years ended March
31, 2025 and 2024, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025
Balance at beginning of year ¥57,997 ¥52,164 $387,887
Expected return on plan assets 1,630 1,464 10,901
Actuarial (losses) gains (2,212) 5,047 (14,794)
Contributions from the

employer 1,216 1,210 8,132
Benefits paid (2,090) (2,064) (13,978)
Others 175 174 1,170

Balance at end of year ¥56,717 ¥57,997 $379,327
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(3) Reconciliation between the liability recorded in the
consolidated balance sheet and the balances of
projected benefit obligations and plan assets as of
March 31, 2025 and 2024, was as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025

Funded projected benefit obligations ¥ 58,432 ¥ 59,449 §$ 390,797

Plan assets (56,717) (57,997) (379,327)
Total 1,715 1,451 11,470
Unfunded projected benefit obligations 141 149 943

Net liability arising from projected

benefit obligations ¥ 1,856 ¥ 1,601 $§ 12,413

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2025 2024 2025

Liability for employees’ retirement

benefits ¥7,658 ¥7,720 $51,217
Asset for employees’ retirement
benefits (5,801) (6,119) (38,797)

Net liability arising from projected

benefit obligations ¥1,856 ¥ 1,601 $12,413

(4) The components of net periodic retirement benefit
costs for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024,
were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2025 2024 2025
Service cost ¥1,250 ¥1610 $ 8,360
Interest cost 914 434 6,112
Expected return on plan assets  (1,630)  (1,464) (10,901)
Recognized actuarial losses 209 1,691 1,397

Net periodic retirement benefit costs ¥ 743 ¥2,272 $ 4,969

Note: Employees’ contribution to corporate pension funds
is deducted.

(5) Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income
(before income taxes and income tax effect) in respect
of defined retirement benefit plans for the years ended
March 31, 2025 and 2024, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2025 2024 2025
Actuarial (losses) gains ¥(2,333) ¥14,223 $(15,603)
Total ¥(2,333) ¥14,223 $(15,603)

(6) Amounts recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income (before income taxes and
income tax effect) in respect of defined retirement
benefit plans as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, were as
follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2025 2024 2025
Unrecognized actuarial gains ¥(4,136) ¥(6,470) $(27,661)
Total ¥(4,136) ¥(6,470) $(27,661)

(7) Plan assets as of March 31, 2025 and 2024
a. Components of plan assets
Plan assets consisted of the following:

2025 2024

Debt investments 28%  38%
Equity investments 30 35
Cash and cash equivalents 16 1
Life insurance company accounts (general accounts) 19 19
Call loans, etc. 7 7
Others 0 0

Total 100% 100%

Note: Total plan assets as of March 31, 2025 and 2024,
include retirement benefit trust established under
lump-sum payment plans by 18% and 19%,
respectively.

b.Method of determining the long-term expected rate
of return on plan assets

The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined
considering allocation of plan assets that are expected
currently and in the future and the long-term rates of
return which are expected currently and in the future from
the various components of the plan assets.

(8) Assumptions used for the years ended March 31,
2025 and 2024, were set forth as follows:

2025 2024
Discount rate 1.5% 1.5%
Long-term expected rate of return on plan assets 2.8 2.8
Expected rate of salary increase 4.5 4.5

(9) Defined contribution

The amount required to be contributed to the defined
contribution plan of the Bank and its consolidated
subsidiaries was ¥261 million ($1,745 thousand) and
¥264 million for the years ended March 31, 2025 and
2024, respectively.

18.ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

Asset retirement obligations which were recognized on
the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2025 and
2024, were as follows:

a. Overview of asset retirement obligations

Asset retirement obligations are recognized for obligations
of restoring leased buildings, such as branch premises, to
their original state, based on the real estate lease
contracts and asbestos removal costs.

b. Calculation of asset retirement obligations

Asset retirement obligations are calculated based on the
estimated available periods of 16 to 31 years depending on
the expected useful lives of buildings using discount rates
from 0.139% to 2.326%.



c. The changes in asset retirement obligations for the
years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025
Balance at beginning of year ¥596 ¥608 $3,986
Increase due to acquisition
of tangible assets 2 1 13
Reconciliation associated
with passage of time 5 5 33
Decrease due to execution of
asset retirement obligations (16)
Other (11) (2) (73)
Balance at end of year ¥592 ¥596 $3,959

19. PERFORMANCE-LINKED STOCK
COMPENSATION SYSTEM

The Bank has introduced a performance-linked stock
compensation system (the “System”) based on the Board
Incentive Plan (“BIP”) trust from the perspective of
enhancing motivation to make contributions to improving
the medium- to long-term performance and corporate
value by further clarifying the linkage between
compensation to directors, etc. and stock value of the
Bank.

Under the System, the Bank’s shares are acquired
using the funds contributed by the Bank as compensation
to directors, etc. through the trust and such shares are
granted to directors, etc. through the trust according to
their ranks and achievement of management plans. Said
transactions are related to the System.

The Bank’s shares remaining in the trust are recorded
as treasury stock under “Equity” and the carrying amount
of such treasury stock was ¥1,483 million ($9,918
thousand) and ¥1,134 million and the number of shares
was 637 thousand shares and 617 thousand shares as of
March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

20. EQUITY

Japanese banks are subject to the Banking Law and to
the Companies Act of Japan (the “Companies Act”). The
significant provisions in the Companies Act and the
Banking Law that affect financial and accounting matters
are summarized below:

a. Dividends

Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends
at any time during the fiscal year in addition to the year-
end dividend upon resolution at the general meeting of
stockholders. For companies that meet certain criteria
such as (1) having a Board of Directors, (2) having
independent auditors, (3) having an Audit & Supervisory
Board, and (4) the term of service of the directors being
prescribed as one year rather than two years of normal
term by its articles of incorporation, the Board of Directors
may declare dividends (except for dividends-in-kind) at
any time during the fiscal year if the company has
prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. The Bank
meets all the above criteria. The Companies Act permits
companies to distribute dividends-in-kind (noncash
assets) to stockholders subject to certain limitations and
additional requirements. Semiannual interim dividends
may also be paid once a year upon resolution by the
Board of Directors if the articles of incorporation of the

company so stipulate. The Bank can do so because it
stipulates this in its articles of incorporation. The
Companies Act provides certain limitations on the
amounts available for dividends or the purchase of
treasury stock. The limitation is defined as the amount
available for distribution to the stockholders, but the
amount of net assets after dividends must be maintained
at no less than ¥3 million.

b. Increases/Decreases and Transfer of Common
Stock, Reserve and Surplus

The Banking Law requires that an amount equal to 20%
of dividends must be appropriated as a legal reserve (a
component of retained earnings) or as additional paid-in
capital (a component of capital surplus) depending on the
equity account charged upon the payment of such
dividends until the total of the aggregate amount of the
legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 100%
of stated capital.

Under the Companies Act and the Banking Law, the
aggregate amount of additional paid-in capital and the
legal reserve that exceeds 100% of the stated capital may
be made available for dividends by resolution of the
stockholders after transferring such excess to retained
earnings in accordance with the Companies Act. Under
the Companies Act, the total amount of additional paid-in
capital and the legal reserve may be reversed without
limitation. The Companies Act also provides that stated
capital, legal reserve, additional paid-in capital, other
capital surplus, and retained earnings can be transferred
among the accounts under certain conditions upon
resolution of the stockholders.

c. Treasury Stock and Treasury Stock Acquisition
Rights

The Companies Act also provides for companies to
purchase treasury stock and dispose of such treasury
stock by resolution of the Board of Directors. The amount
of treasury stock purchased cannot exceed the amount
available for distribution to the stockholders which is
determined by a specific formula. Under the Companies
Act, stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate
component of equity. The Companies Act also provides
that companies can purchase both treasury stock
acquisition rights and treasury stock. Such treasury stock
acquisition rights are presented as a separate component
of equity or deducted directly from stock acquisition rights.

21. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Other operating income for the years ended March 31,
2025 and 2024, consisted of the following:
Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025

Gain on sales and redemption

of bonds and other securities ¥ 2,781 ¥ 422 $ 18,599

Lease receipts 8,690 8,623 58,119
Other 5,381 5,423 35,988
Total ¥16,852 ¥14,470 $112,707
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22. OTHER INCOME

Other income for the years ended March 31, 2025 and
2024, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2025 2024 2025
Gains on sales of tangible fixed assets ¥379 ¥299  $2,534
Other 485 497 3,243
Total ¥864 ¥796  $5,778

23. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other operating expenses for the years ended March 31,
2025 and 2024, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025

Losses on sales, redemption

and devaluation of bonds and

other securities ¥24,009 ¥14,241 $160,573
Lease costs 7,864 7,91 52,594
Other 14,513 15,517 97,063

Total ¥46,387 ¥37,670 $310,239

24. OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses for the years ended March 31, 2025 and
2024, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025

Bad debt losses ¥ 11 ¥ 24 § 73
Losses on dispositions of money

held in trust 1,108 2,179 7,410
Losses on sales of loans 859 175 5,745
Losses on impairments and

disposals of fixed assets 194 279 1,297
Provision for reserve for

contingent losses 21 136 140
Other 497 374 3,323

Total ¥2,692 ¥3,169  $18,004

25. INCOME TAXES

The Companies are subject to Japanese national and
local income taxes which, in the aggregate, resulted in a
normal effective statutory tax rate of approximately 30.5%
for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024.

The tax effects of significant temporary differences
which resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities as of
March 31, 2025 and 2024, were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025

Deferred tax assets:
Reserve for loan losses
Liability for employees’

¥16,854 ¥ 16,369 $ 112,720

retirement benefits 5,738 5,674 38,376
Fixed assets (depreciation) 5,046 4,936 33,747
Losses on devaluation of

investment securities 1,493 1,575 9,985
Reserve for bonuses 595 590 3,979
Other 5,457 5,423 36,496
Less valuation allowance* (15,602) (14,570) (104,347)

Total 19,583 20,000 130,972
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized gains on available-

for-sale securities 30,663 52,829 205,076
Asset for employees’ retirement

benefits 1,899 2,148 12,700
Fixed assets (deferred gain

on sales and replacements) 245 261 1,638
Other 17 19 113

Total 32,826 55,258 219,542

¥(13,243) ¥(35,258) $ (88,570)

* Valuation allowance increased by ¥1,032 million ($6,902
thousand) as of March 31, 2025. This increase was
mainly due to an increase in valuation allowance for
reserve for loan losses recorded by the Bank and its
consolidated subsidiaries of ¥1,045 million ($6,989
thousand).

Net deferred tax liabilities

Areconciliation between the normal effective statutory
tax rate and the actual effective tax rate reflected in the
accompanying consolidated statement of income for the
year ended March 31, 2024, was as follows, whereas the
reconciliation for the year ended March 31, 2025, is not
required under Japanese accounting standards since the
difference is less than 5% of the normal effective statutory
tax rate.

2024
Normal effective statutory tax rate 30.5%
Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes,
such as entertainment expenses 0.2
Income not taxable for income tax purposes,
such as dividend income (0.9)
Inhabitants taxes 0.1
Valuation allowance 2.2
Other—net 0.5
Total 32.6%

Following the enactment of the Act for Partial Amendment
to the Income Tax Act (Act No. 13 of 2025) on March 31,
2025, the special defense corporation tax will be imposed
from the year starting on or after April 1, 2026. Consequently,
the statutory effective tax rate used to calculate deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities was changed from 30.5%



to 31.4% for temporary differences expected to be reversed
in the year starting on April 1, 2026, and 31.3% for temporary
differences expected to be reversed in the year starting on
April 1, 2027. Due to this change, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities increased by ¥10 million ($66
thousand) and ¥488 million ($3,263 thousand), respectively,
while unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities and
income taxes - deferred decreased by ¥879 million ($5,878
thousand) and ¥397 million ($2,655 thousand), respectively,
for the year ended March 31, 2025.

26. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME

The components of other comprehensive (loss) income for
the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2025 2024 2025

Unrealized (losses) gains on
available-for-sale securities:
(Loss) gain arising during the year ¥(79,824)¥ 95,926 $(533,868)
Reclassification adjustment to

profit or loss 3122 (3,462) 20,880
Amount before income taxes
and income tax effect (76,702) 92,464 (512,988)
Income taxes and income tax effect 22,166 (27,260) 148,247
Total ¥(54,535)¥ 65,203 $(364,733)

Maturities of lease receivables for finance leases as of
March 31, 2025, are as follows:

Year Ending March 31 Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2026 ¥ 276 $ 1,845
2027 265 1,772
2028 251 1,678
2029 214 1,431
2030 166 1,110
2031 and thereafter 322 2,153

Total ¥1,496 $10,005

Maturities of investment in leases for finance leases as
of March 31, 2025, are as follows:

Year Ending March 31 Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2026 ¥ 6,900 $ 46,147
2027 5,476 36,623
2028 4,306 28,798
2029 3,083 20,619
2030 1,690 11,302
2031 and thereafter 2,073 13,864

Total ¥23,530 $157,370

Operating Leases

Lessee
Future minimum payments under noncancelable

Deferred losses on derivatives under operating leases as of March 31, 2025, are as follows:
hedge accounting: ) Thousands of
Loss arising during the year ¥ (762)¥ (165)$ (5,096) Year Ending March 31 Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

Reclassification adjustment to 2026 ¥ 79 $ 528
profit or loss 503 122 3,364 2027 and thereafter 1,272 8,507

Amount before income taxes Total ¥1,352 $9,042

and income tax effect (258) (42)  (1,725)

Income taxes and income tax effect 82 12 548

Total ¥ (176)¥  (29)$ (1,177)

Defined retirement benefit plans:
(Loss) gain arising during the year ¥ (2,543)¥ 12,531 $ (17,007)
Reclassification adjustment to

profit or loss 209 1,691 1,397
Amount before income taxes
and income tax effect (2333) 14,223  (15,603)
Income taxes and income tax effect 672 (4,323) 4,494
Total ¥ (1,661)¥ 9,899 $ (11,108)
Total other comprehensive (loss)
income ¥(56,373)¥ 75,073 $(377,026)
27. LEASES

Finance Leases

Lessor
A subsidiary leases certain equipment and other assets
to various customers.

The net investments in leases as of March 31, 2025
and 2024, are summarized as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025
Gross lease receivables ¥23,530 ¥21,374 $157,370
Estimated residual values 2,997 2,479 20,044
Unearned interest income (2,491) (2,202) (16,659)

Investments in leases ¥24,036 ¥20,167 $160,754

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED
DISCLOSURES

a. Status of Financial Instruments
(1) Group policy for financial instruments
The Companies provide financial services such as credit
card business and leasing operations in addition to banking
operations. In the course of these operations, the
Companies raise funds principally through deposit taking
and invest funds in loans, securities, and others. As such,
the Bank holds financial assets and liabilities which are
subject to fluctuation in interest rates, etc. and conducts
comprehensive Asset and Liability Management (“ALM”) to
avoid unfavorable effects from interest rate fluctuations,
etc. Derivatives are also employed by the Bank as part of
ALM.
(2) Nature and extent of risks arising from financial
instruments
Financial assets held by the Companies mainly consist of
loans to domestic corporations, local government
agencies, and individual customers which are exposed to
credit risk that the Companies may suffer from losses
resulting from nonperformance of borrowers and interest
rate risk that the Companies may suffer from losses
resulting from fluctuations in interest rates.

Securities, mainly debt securities, equity securities, and
investment trusts are held to maturity and for other
purposes and also certain debt securities are held for the
purpose of selling to customers. These securities are
exposed to credit risk of issuers and market risks of
fluctuations in interest rates and market prices.
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In addition, they are exposed to market liquidity risk that
the Companies may suffer from losses resulting from
difficulties in executing financial transactions in certain
environments such as market turmoil.

Financial liabilities, mainly consisting of liquid deposits
or time deposits taken from corporate and individual
customers, are exposed to cash flow risk that the Bank
may experience a situation where unexpected cash flows
are incurred in certain environments where the credit
rating of the Bank may be lowered and, accordingly,
necessary funding may become difficult.

Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are
exposed to foreign exchange risk that the Bank may
suffer from losses resulting from fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates.

Derivatives mainly include interest rate swaps and bond
futures, which are used to manage exposure to market
risks from changes in interest rates of loans and debt
securities, and currency swaps and foreign exchange
forward contracts, which are used to hedge foreign
exchange risk associated with foreign currency-
denominated assets and liabilities. Hedge accounting is
applied to certain hedging activities related to loans and
debt securities as hedged items.

(3) Risk management for financial instruments

Credit Risk Management

The Bank has established the “Credit Risk Control Policy”
as a basic policy for credit risk management and various
rules concerning credit risk management. Based on these
policies and rules, the Bank clarifies fundamental
approaches to secure the soundness of assets and
control procedures for identifying, monitoring, and
controlling credit risk. Additionally, the Bank utilizes the
“Credit Rating System” from the viewpoint of carrying out
appropriate screening and management based on the
risk characteristics of the credit recipient.

In addition, as an organization responsible for credit
risk management, credit risk control functions and review
control functions have been established to secure the
effectiveness of credit risk management.

The Risk Management Division, as a credit risk control
function, is engaged in identifying the level of future
possible credit risk and the status of credit concentration
in major borrowers through measurement of the level of
credit risk and analysis of credit portfolios.

The Credit Supervision Division, as a review control
function, is engaged in reviewing lending operations
based on strict examination standards, system
development for strengthening the daily control of loan
receivables, and appropriate maintenance of operational
procedures.

Market Risk Management

(a) Market risk management system

The Bank has established the “Market Risk Control
Policy” as a basic policy for market risk management and
various rules concerning market risk management. Based
on these policies and rules, the Bank clarifies
fundamental approaches for appropriate market risk
control operations and control procedures for identifying,
monitoring and controlling market risk.

As an organization responsible for market risk
management, a market risk control function (middle
office) has been established and furthermore, the
operating function (front office) and the administration
function (back office) have been separated. Additionally,
market risk control function staffs are assigned to the
operating function to secure the effectiveness of market
risk management.

The Risk Management Division, as a market risk
control function, measures the level of market risk of the
Bank as a whole using Value-at-Risk (“VaR”) approach
models and other models and regularly monitors the
status of compliance with position limits and loss limits
established according to the type and characteristics of
transactions to control the level of market risk within a
certain range.

In addition, an ALM and Income Control Committee
was established for the purpose of analyzing flexible
investment strategies in order to prevent risks resulting
from fluctuations in interest rates and market prices, while
forecasting future interest rates, market prices, and trends
of fund and business conditions. The committee is also
responsible for securing the soundness of management
and improving profitability at the same time based on
appropriate asset and liability management through the
unification of risk management and earnings control.

(b) Quantitative information about market risk

The Bank adopts the variance-covariance method
(holding period: 125 business days for strategic equity
securities and 60 business days for others; confidence
interval: 99.0%; observation period: 250 business days)
in computing the VaR with respect to money held in trust,
investment securities, Japanese yen deposits and loans,
and Japanese yen money market funds. The volume of
market risk (estimated losses) that the Bank is exposed
to as of March 31, 2025, amounts to ¥175,068 million
($1,170,866 thousand) (¥129,523 million in 2024) as a
whole. However, the risk under certain abnormal market
fluctuations may not be captured since, under the VaR
method, the volume of market risk under a definite
probability of statistically computed incidence is measured
based on historical market fluctuations.

The Bank implements back testing to compare the VaR
computed by the model with actual profit and loss in the
investment securities and confirms that the measurement
model in use captures the market risk with sufficient
precision.

Liquidity Risk Management

The Bank has established the “Liquidity Risk Control
Policy” as a basic policy for liquidity risk management and
various rules concerning liquidity risk management.
Based on these policies and rules, the Bank clarifies
fundamental approaches for stable funding of operations
and control procedures for identifying, monitoring and
controlling liquidity risk. In addition, the Bank has
established the “Contingency Plan for Liquidity” to enable
it to make quick and correct responses to unexpected
events.

Furthermore, as an organization responsible for liquidity
risk management, a liquidity risk control function has
been established and a cash management function and a
settlement control function have been established to
control daily cash management and settlement related to
cash and securities.

The Risk Management Division, as a liquidity risk control
function, manages the liquidity risk of the Bank as a whole
by identifying, monitoring and controlling liquidity risk.

The Treasury Administration and International Division,
as a cash management control function and settlement
control function, prepares daily or monthly cash flow
projections and conducts cash management by identifying
possible funds and liquidity of assets, and verifying the
concentration of settlement of major account funds to a
certain date. The Division also controls settlement by
identifying the status of settlement through systems such
as the BOJ-NET and among financial institutions.



Risk Management System of Subsidiaries

The subsidiaries have a risk management system similar

to that of the Bank.

(4) Supplementary explanation about fair values of
financial instruments

Since certain assumptions are used in calculating the fair

values of financial instruments, the outcome of such

calculation may vary if different assumptions are used.

b. Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Carrying Unrealized

March 31, 2025 Amount Fair Value Gain/Loss

(1) Money heldintrust ~ $ 786,704 $ 786,704

(2) Investment securities 19,411,978 19,411,356 $  (615)
Held-to-maturity securities 26,578 25,956 (615)
Available-for-sale securities 19,385,393 19,385,393

(3) Loans and bills discounted 41,269,254
Reserve for loan losses*'  (379,922)

The carrying amount, fair value, and unrealized gain/loss 40,889,332 40,393,987 (495,338)
of the financial instruments as of March 31, 2025 and Total assets $61,088,021 $60,592,061  $(495,960)
2024, are disclosed below. Note that equity securities, (1) Deposits $59,931,059 $59,920,485 $ (10,567)
etc. which do not have a market price and investments in 2)B d 4’555’149 4’473,655 (81’487)
partnerships are not included in the following table (see orrc?wej. .money tisdndet) Uik J
Note 1 below). Notes on cash and due from banks are Total liabilities $64,486,209 $64,394,147 _ $ (92,054)
omitted because they are settled in a short period of time Derivatives*:
and their fair value approximates carrying amount. Also, To which hedge accounting
immaterial accounts in terms of the carrying amount are is not applied $ 24,946 $ 24,946
omitted: N To which hedge accounting
— Millions of Yen e is applied*® (1,946) (1,946)
March 31, 2025 oS Fairvale  ooal2% Total derivatives $ 23,000 $ 23,000
(1)Money heldintrust ¥ 117,628 ¥ 117,628 *1 General and specific reserves for loan losses
(2) Investment securities 2,902,479 2,902,386 ¥  (92) ZOZeSf?dmg to loans and bills discounted are
. o educted.
Helq-to-maturlty SeCUI’I.tI.eS 3,974 3,881 (92) *2 Derivatives recorded under other assets and liabilities
Available-for-sale securiies 2,898,504 2,898,504 are presented in a lump sum.
(3) Loans and bills discounted 6,170,579 Net receivables and payables arising from derivative
Reserve forloan losses” __(56,806) nimbers n parentosts donoto net payabies.
6,113,773 6,039,709  (74,063) 3 These derivatives are interest rate swaps, etc.
Total assets ¥0,133,881 ¥9,059,725  ¥(74,156) designated as hedging instruments to fix the cash
(1) Deposits ¥8,960,892 ¥8,959,311 ¥ (1,580) ﬂO-WS-Ofllloa;Sf’ etC}’hWZiCh are hedglecg itle:m;;:i7 and
principally deferral hedges are applied. Furthermore,
) Borrgwgq 'money 681,086 668,901 (12,184) “Practical Solution on the Treatment of Hedge
Total liabilities ¥0,641,978 ¥0,628,213  ¥(13,764) Accounting for Financial Instruments that Reference
Derivatives*2: LIBOR” (Practica{ Issue Task Force (PITF) No. 40,
To which hedge accounting M?r;;h 12,'2022) is applied to these hedging
is not applied ¥ 3730 ¥ 3730 relationsnips.
Towhich hedge accounting Notes: 1. The carrying amount of equity securities, etc.
is applied* (291) (291) which do not have a market price and
Total derivatives ¥ 3439 ¥ 3439 investments in partnerships are as follows.

March 31, 2024
(1) Money held in trust

¥ 120,536 ¥ 120,536

(2) Investment securities 3,063,217 3,063,204 ¥  (13)
Held-to-maturity securities 1,008 995 (13)
Available-for-sale securities 3,062,209 3,062,209

(3) Loans and bills discounted 5,854,516
Reserve for loan losses*” (60,553)

5,793,963 5,758,166  (35,797)
Total assets ¥8,977,716 ¥8,941,906  ¥(35,810)

(1) Deposits ¥8,935,104 ¥8,935187 ¥ 83
(2) Borrowed money 808,703 800,630 (8,073)
Total liabilities ¥9,743,807 ¥9,735,818 ¥ (7,989)
Derivatives*2:
To which hedge accounting
is not applied ¥ (3,958) ¥ (3,958)
To which hedge accounting
is applied*® (238) (238)
Total derivatives ¥  (4197) ¥ (4,197)

These instruments are not included in
“Available-for-sale securities” in the above table
regarding the fair value of financial instruments.

Carrying Amount

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
Category 2025 2024 2025
Unlisted equity securities*'*> ¥ 4,146 ¥ 2,665 $27,728
Investments in partnerships* 12,582 11,246 84,149

*1 The fair values of unlisted equity securities are not
disclosed in accordance with paragraph 5 of
“Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about Fair
Value of Financial Instruments” (ASBJ Guidance No.
19, March 31, 2020).

*2 No impairment losses were recognized for the years
ended March 31, 2025 and 2024.

*3 The fair values of investments in partnerships are not
disclosed in accordance with paragraph 24-16 of the
“Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for
Fair Value Measurement” (ASBJ Guidance No. 31,
June 17, 2021).
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2. Maturity analysis for financial assets and securities with contractual maturities as of March 31, 2025

Millions of Yen

Due in 1 Year or Due after 1 Year Due after 3 Years Due after 5 Years ~ Due after 7 Years Due after 10
through 3 Years through 5 Years through 7 Years through 10 Years Years
Due from banks ¥ 937,321
Investment securities 389,482 ¥ 724,785 ¥ 613,524 ¥260,398 ¥276,331 ¥ 295,959
Held-to-maturity securities 500 3,500
Local government bonds 500 3,500
Available-for-sale securities
with contractual maturities 389,482 724,285 610,024 260,398 276,331 295,959
National government bonds 2,100 136,000 63,000 50,500 89,000 151,500
Local government bonds 132,394 168,388 137,746 98,306 57,179 11,668
Corporate bonds 126,671 216,846 190,686 67,468 74,000 17,141
Other 128,316 203,050 218,591 44,123 56,151 115,649
Loans and bills discounted* 1,310,682 1,035,499 926,397 588,824 611,355 1,563,143
Total ¥2,637,486 ¥1,760,284 ¥1,539,922 ¥849,223 ¥887,687 ¥1,859,102
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Due in 1 Year or Due after 1 Year Due after 3 Years Due after 5 Years ~ Due after 7 Years Due after 10
Less through 3 Years through 5 Years through 7 Years through 10 Years Years
Due from banks $ 6,268,867
Investment securities 2,604,882 $ 4,847,411 $ 4,103,290 $1,741,559 $1,848,120 $ 1,979,394
Held-to-maturity securities 3,344 23,408
Local government bonds 3,344 23,408
Available-for-sale securities
with contractual maturities 2,604,882 4,844,067 4,079,882 1,741,559 1,848,120 1,979,394
National government bonds 14,044 909,577 421,348 337,747 595,238 1,013,242
Local government bonds 885,460 1,126,190 921,254 657,477 382,417 78,036
Corporate bonds 847,184 1,450,280 1,275,321 451,230 494,917 114,640
Other 858,186 1,358,012 1,461,951 295,097 375,541 773,468
Loans and bills discounted* 8,765,930 6,925,488 6,195,806 3,938,095 4,088,784 10,454,407
Total $17,639,686 $11,772,899 $10,299,103 $5,679,661 $5,936,911 $12,433,801

* Of loans and bills discounted, the portion whose timing of collection is unforeseeable, such as loans to “legally bankrupt” borrowers,
loans to “virtually bankrupt’ borrowers, and loans to “possibly bankrupt” borrowers, amounting to ¥92,978 million (3621,843 thousand)
is not included in the above table. Loans that do not have a contractual maturity, amounting to ¥41,698 million ($278,879 thousand), are

not included either.

3. Repayment schedule of bonds, borrowed money, and other interest-bearing liabilities subsequent to March 31, 2025

Millions of Yen

Due in 1 Year or Due after 1 Year Due after 3 Years ~ Due after 5 Years  Due after 7 Years Due after 10
Less through 3 Years through 5 Years through 7 Years  through 10 Years Years
Deposits* ¥8,582,119 ¥299,828 ¥78,943
Borrowed money 144,965 535,216 433 ¥107 ¥157 ¥206
Total ¥8,727,085 ¥835,045 ¥79,376 ¥107 ¥157 ¥206
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
ey Qe Qudeies QemeRer DegiER  Odr”
Deposits* $57,397,799 $2,005,270 $527,976
Borrowed money 969,535 3,579,561 2,895 $715 $1,050 $1,377
Total $58,367,342 $5,584,838 $530,872 $715 $1,050 $1,377

* Demand deposits included in deposits are presented under “Due in 1 year or less.”
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c. Financial Instruments Categorized by Fair Value Hierarchy
The fair value of financial instruments is categorized into the following three levels, depending on the observability and

significance of the inputs used in making fair value measurement:

Level 1: Fair value measured using observable inputs, i.e. quoted prices in active markets for assets or liabilities that are

the subject of the measurement

Level 2: Fair value measured using observable inputs other than Level 1 inputs
Level 3: Fair value measured using unobservable inputs

If multiple inputs are used that are significant to the fair value measurement, the fair value measurement is categorized
in its entirety in the level of the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

(1) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2025 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Money held in trust ¥ 39,139 ¥ 78,489 ¥ 117,628
Investment securities:
Available-for-sale securities:
National government bonds 465,022 465,022
Local government bonds 586,736 586,736
Corporate bonds 634,741 ¥40,007 674,748
Equity securities 182,683 5,027 187,711
Other 143,066 841,219 984,286
Total assets ¥829,912 ¥2,146,214 ¥40,007 ¥3,016,133
Derivatives™:
Interest rate-related ¥ 337 ¥ 337
Currency-related 3,101 3,101
Total derivatives ¥ 3,439 ¥ 3,439
Millions of Yen
March 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Money held in trust ¥ 43,326 ¥ 77,209 ¥ 120,536
Investment securities:
Available-for-sale securities:
National government bonds 385,773 385,773
Local government bonds 791,099 791,099
Corporate bonds 674,094 ¥44,209 718,304
Equity securities 200,546 5,415 205,961
Other 130,795 830,275 961,070
Total assets ¥760,442 ¥2,378,093 ¥44,209 ¥3,182,745
Derivatives™:
Interest rate-related ¥ 238 ¥ 238
Currency-related (4,436) (4,436)
Total derivatives ¥  (4,197) ¥  (4197)
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
March 31, 2025 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Money held in trust $ 261,764 $ 524,939 $ 786,704
Investment securities:
Available-for-sale securities:
National government bonds 3,110,098 3,110,098
Local government bonds 3,924,130 3,924,130
Corporate bonds 4,245,191 $267,569 4,512,760
Equity securities 1,221,796 33,620 1,255,424
Other 956,835 5,626,130 6,582,972
Total assets $5,550,508 $14,354,026 $267,569 $20,172,104
Derivatives™:
Interest rate-related $ 2,253 $ 2,253
Currency-related 20,739 20,739
Total derivatives $ 23,000 $ 23,000

* Derivatives recorded under other assets and liabilities are presented in a lump sum.
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Net receivables and payables arising from derivative transactions are presented in net amounts and numbers in

parenthesis denote net payables.

(2) Financial instruments other than those measured at fair value

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2025 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment securities:
Held-to-maturity securities:
Local government bonds ¥ 3,881 ¥ 3,881
Loans and bills discounted ¥6,039,709 6,039,709
Total assets ¥ 3,881 ¥6,039,709 ¥6,043,591
Deposits ¥8,959,311 ¥8,959,311
Borrowed money 668,901 668,901
Total liabilities ¥9,628,213 ¥9,628,213
Millions of Yen
March 31, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment securities:
Held-to-maturity securities:
Local government bonds ¥ 995 ¥ 995
Loans and bills discounted ¥5,758,166 5,758,166
Total assets ¥ 995 ¥5,758,166 ¥5,759,161
Deposits ¥8,935,187 ¥8,935,187
Borrowed money 800,630 800,630
Total liabilities ¥9,735,818 ¥9,735,818
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
March 31, 2025 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investment securities:
Held-to-maturity securities:
Local government bonds $ 25,956 $ 25,956
Loans and bills discounted $40,393,987 40,393,987
Total assets $ 25,956 $40,393,987 $40,419,950
Deposits $59,920,485 $59,920,485
Borrowed money 4,473,655 4,473,655
Total liabilities $64,394,147 $64,394,147

Notes: 1. A description of the valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair value measurement

Assets
Money held in trust
For securities that are part of trust property in an

securities are classified as Level 2. With respect to
private placement bonds and specified corporate
bonds, the fair value is determined using the future

independently managed monetary trust with the
primary purpose to manage securities, the fair values
of equity securities are determined using the quoted
price of the stock exchange and the fair values of debt
securities are determined using the quoted price of
Japan Securities Dealers Association or the price
calculated by counterparty financial institutions. The
level of fair value is determined based on the level of
trust property and classified as Level 1 or Level 2. See
Note 6, “Money Held in Trust” for information on money
held in trust by holding purpose.

Investment securities
The fair values of debt securities excluding private
placement bonds and specified corporate bonds are
determined using quoted price of Japan Securities
Dealers Association or the price calculated by
counterparty financial institutions, and Japanese
government bonds and U.S. treasury bonds are
principally classified as Level 1 while other debt

cash flows (coupons, redemption amount of principal,
guarantee fees) discounted at an interest rate
considering the market interest rates and issuers’ credit
risk, and is classified as Level 3.

The fair values of equity securities are determined
using the quoted price of the stock exchange and
principally classified as Level 1 based on the market
activity.

The fair values of listed investment trusts are
determined using the quoted price of the stock
exchange and principally classified as Level 1 based
on the market activity while those of private placement
investment trusts are determined based on the unit
price and classified as Level 2.

Loans and bills discounted
Loans and bills discounted are grouped by the type of
loan, internal ratings, and maturity length, and their fair
value is determined by discounting the total amount of
principal and interest by the market interest rate plus



the standard spread (including expense ratio) for each
credit rating according to the nature of instruments.
With respect to loans with floating interest rates and
loans with short contractual terms (within one year), for
which the difference between fair value and carrying
amount is within a certain range and considered to be
approximate, the carrying amount is presented as the
fair value.

For loans to legally, virtually, or possibly bankrupt
borrowers, the estimated uncollectible amounts are
calculated based on the present value of estimated
future cash flows or the estimated amount to be
collected through collateral and guarantees. Therefore,
the fair value of such loans approximates the carrying
amount of receivables at the balance sheet date less
the amount of reserve for loan losses, and such
amount is used as the fair value.

For loans for which the repayment due date is not
defined because of the characteristics that the loan
amount is limited within the pledged assets, the
carrying amount is presented as the fair value since
fair value approximates carrying amount considering
the expected repayment schedule and terms of the
interest rates.

These loans are classified as Level 3.

Liabilities

Deposits
Regarding demand deposits, the amount payable as of
the balance sheet date (i.e., the carrying amount) is
considered to be the fair value. Time deposits and
negotiable certificates of deposit are grouped by
maturity length, and the fair value is determined using
the present value of the sum of the principal and
interest discounted at the market interest rate. For
deposits with maturities within a short time period
(within one year) and whose fair value approximates
carrying amount, the carrying amount is presented as
the fair value. The fair value of these deposits is
classified as Level 2.

Borrowed money
For each type of borrowed money financed, the fair
value is determined based on the present value of the
sum of the principal and interest discounted at the
market interest rate. The carrying amount is presented
as the fair value if the maturity is within a short time
period (within one year) and fair value approximates
carrying amount. The fair value of borrowed money is
classified as Level 2.

Derivatives
Because derivative transactions are over-the-counter
transactions and there are no published quoted market
prices, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques such as present value method and Black-
Scholes model depending on the type of transaction
and the period to maturity. Main inputs used for
valuation techniques include interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, volatilities, etc.

The fair value of derivatives is classified as Level 2

since unobservable inputs are not used, or their impact
is immaterial.

2. Information about Level 3 fair value of financial instruments carried on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value

(1) Quantitative information on significant unobservable inputs

Weighted
Significant Scope of Average of
March 31, 2025 Valuation Techniques Unobservable Inputs Inputs Inputs
Investment securities:
Available-for-sale securities:
Private placement bonds Present value method Default probability 0.02%- 6.32% 0.50%
and specified bonds Loss rate at default 35.32%-66.45% 49.88%
March 31, 2024
Investment securities:
Available-for-sale securities:
Private placement bonds Present value method Default probability 0.15%- 6.62% 0.83%
Loss rate at default 32.66%-64.63% 46.39%
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(2) A reconciliation from the beginning balances to the
ending balances and gains or losses on valuation
included in profit or loss for the period

Investment Securities:
Available-for-Sale Securities
Private Placement Bonds

Millions of  Thousands of
March 31, 2025 Yen U.S. Dollars
Beginning balance ¥44,209 $295,672

Profit or loss or other

comprehensive income:
Recorded in profit or loss™ (2) (13)
Recorded in other

comprehensive income™

Net amount of purchases,
sales, issuances, and
settlements

(280) (1,872)

(3,918) (26,203)

Ending balance ¥40,007 $267,569

Gains or losses on valuation
of financial assets and
financial liabilities held at
the balance sheet date
included in profit or loss
for the period™ ¥ (2 $ (13

Investment Securities:
Available-for-Sale Securities
Private Placement Bonds

March 31, 2024 Millions of Yen

Beginning balance ¥44,374
Profit or loss or other
comprehensive income:

Recorded in profit or loss™ (103)

Recorded in other
comprehensive income? (32)
Net amount of purchases,
sales, issuances, and
settlements (29)

Ending balance ¥ 44,209

Gains or losses on valuation
of financial assets and
financial liabilities held at
the balance sheet date
included in profit or loss

for the period*’ ¥ (103)

*1 Included in “Other operating expenses” in the
consolidated statement of income.

*2 Included in “Unrealized (losses) gains on available-for-
sale securities” under “Other comprehensive (loss)
income” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

(3) A description of valuation processes used for fair value
measurements
The Bank measures fair value according to the policies
and procedures for fair value measurement established
by its Risk Management Division. In measuring fair value,
a valuation model that most appropriately reflects the
nature, characteristics and risks of each asset is used,
and the Risk Management Division determines the level
of fair value classification.

In addition, when using quoted prices obtained from
third parties, the Bank verifies whether the prices are
valid using appropriate methods, such as confirming the
valuation techniques and inputs used and comparing
them with the fair value of similar financial instruments.

(4) A description of sensitivity of the fair value
measurement to changes in significant unobservable
inputs

Significant unobservable inputs used in measurement of

fair value of private placement bonds and specified

corporate bonds are default probability and loss rate at
default. In general, a significant increase (decrease) in
the default probability will result in an increase (decrease)
in loss rate at default and a significant decrease

(increase) in fair value.

29. DERIVATIVES

It is the Bank’s policy to use derivatives primarily for the
purpose of reducing market risks associated with its assets
and liabilities. The Bank also utilizes derivatives to meet
the needs of its clients while entering into derivatives as a
part of its trading activities.

The Bank enters into interest rate swaps and interest
rate swaptions as a means of hedging its interest rate risk
on certain loans and investment securities while entering
into interest rate swaps and interest rate swaptions to
meet the needs of its clients.

The Bank also enters into currency swaps, foreign
exchange forward contracts, and currency options to
hedge foreign exchange risk associated with its assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and to
meet the needs of its clients.

Derivatives are subject to market risk and credit risk.
Market risk is the exposure created by potential
fluctuations of market conditions, including interest or
foreign exchange rates. Credit risk is the possibility that a
loss may result from a counterparty’s failure to perform its
obligations under a contract.

The Bank sets limits on credit risk for those derivatives
by limiting the counterparties to major financial institutions
and securities companies and establishing maximum risk
exposures to the counterparties.

The Bank has established a standard of risk
management including management approaches for each
type of risk. Derivative transactions entered into by the
Bank have been made in accordance with internal policies
which regulate trading activities and credit risk
management including maximum risk exposures and loss-
cutting rules. Concerning risk management associated
with derivative transactions, the front and back offices of
the trading divisions are clearly separated and risk
managers are assigned to the trading divisions, while the
Risk Management Division synthetically manages the
Bank’s market risks. In this manner, an internal control
system is effectively secured.

The Bank’s positions, gain and loss, risk amount, and
other conditions are periodically reported to the executive
committee.



The Bank has the following derivatives contracts outstanding as of March 31, 2025 and 2024:

Derivative Transactions to Which Hedge Accounting

Is Not Applied

With respect to derivatives to which hedge accounting is not applied, contract or notional amount, fair value, and unrealized
gains/losses are as shown below. Note that the contract or notional amounts of the derivatives which are shown in the table
do not represent the amounts of the Bank’s exposure to credit or market risk.

Millions of Yen

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025
Contract or Notional Contract or Notional Contract or Notional
Amount Amount Amount
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Due after  Fair Gains/ Due after  Fair Gains/ Due after  Fair Gains/
Total One Year Value Losses Total One Year Value Losses Total One Year Value Losses
Interest rate-related
over-the-counter
(“OTC”) transactions:
Interest rate swaps:
Fixed rate receipt/
floating rate payment ¥ 25,569 ¥ 25,569 ¥(2,091) ¥(2,091) ¥ 26,582 ¥ 26582 ¥ (873)% (873) $ 171,007 § 171,007 $(13,984) §(13,984)
Floating rate receipt/
fixed rate payment 25,645 25569 2,292 2,292 26,670 26,670 1,094 1,094 171,515 171,007 15,329 15,329
Currency-related OTC
transactions:
Currency swaps 41,690 39,955 159 159 43,761 42,013 172 172 278,825 267,221 1,063 1,063
Foreign exchange
forward contracts:
Selling 301,525 74239 (6,335) (6,335) 331,339 53318 (11,606) (11,606) 2,016,619 496,515 (42,368) (42,368)
Buying 82,059 74238 9,705 9,705 58,048 53,313 7255 7,255 548,816 496,508 64,907 64,907
Currency option:
Selling 194,201 164,824  (958) 1,116 146,357 122,623 (628) 1,035 1,209.431 1,102,354  (6,407) 7,463
Buying 194,291 164,824 958 400 146,357 122,623 628 104 1,299,431 1,102,354 6,407 2,675

Note: The above transactions are stated at fair value and unrealized gains (losses) as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, are
recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

Derivative Transactions to Which Hedge Accounting Is Applied
With respect to derivatives to which hedge accounting is applied, contract or notional amount and fair value are as shown
below. Note that the contract or notional amounts of the derivatives which are shown in the table do not represent the

amounts of the Bank’s exposure to market risk.

(1) Interest rate-related transactions
March 31, 2025

Millions of Yen

Contract or Notional Amount

Due after

Hedge Accounting Method Type of Derivatives ~ Major Hedged Item Total One Year Fair Value
Normal method Interest rate swaps—  Loans and
Floating rate receipt/ investment
fixed rate payment securities ¥10,292 ¥ 5,428 ¥135
Special matching criteria Interest rate swaps—
Floating rate receipt/
fixed rate payment Loans 23,160 16,087 700
Total ¥836
March 31, 2024 Millions of Yen
Contract or Notional Amount
Hedge Accounting Method Type of Derivatives ~ Major Hedged Item Total 8%2 f‘(féglr, Fair Value
Normal method Interest rate swaps—  Loans and
Floating rate receipt/ investment
fixed rate payment securities ¥13,844 ¥11,109 ¥ 17
Special matching criteria Interest rate swaps—
Floating rate receipt/
fixed rate payment Loans 25,364 24,901 415
Total ¥433
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March 31, 2025

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Contract or Notional Amount
Due after

Hedge Accounting Method Type of Derivatives  Major Hedged Item Total One Year Fair Value
Normal method Interest rate swaps—  Loans and
Floating rate receipt/ investment
fixed rate payment securities $ 68,833 $ 36,302 $ 902
Special matching criteria Interest rate swaps—
Floating rate receipt/
fixed rate payment Loans 154,895 107,590 4,681
Total $5,591

Note: These are principally accounted for under the deferral hedge method in accordance with the JICPA Industry
Committee Practical Guideline No. 24, “Treatment of Accounting and Auditing of Application of Accounting Standard

for Financial Instruments in the Banking Industry.”

(2) Currency-related transactions
March 31, 2025

Millions of Yen

Contract or Notional Amount
Due after

Hedge Accounting Method Type of Derivatives ~ Major Hedged Item Total One Year Fair Value
Normal method Currency swaps Foreign currency
denominated loans  ¥37,380 ¥37,380 ¥(426)
Total ¥(426)
March 31, 2024 Millions of Yen
Contract or Notional Amount
Hedge Accounting Method Type of Derivatives ~ Major Hedged Item Total 8%2 %gglr, Fair Value
Normal method Currency swaps Foreign currency
denominated loans ¥9,084 ¥9,084 ¥(256)
Total ¥(256)

March 31, 2025

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Contract or Notional Amount

Hedge Accounting Method Type of Derivatives ~ Major Hedged Item Total ng ?(fetg; Fair Value
Normal method Currency swaps Foreign currency

denominated loans  $250,000 $250,000 $(2,849)

Total $(2,849)

Note: These are principally accounted for under the deferral hedge method in accordance with the JICPA Industry
Committee Practical Guideline No. 25, “Treatment of Accounting and Auditing of Accounting for Foreign Currency

Transactions in the Banking Industry.”

30. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related-party transactions for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, were as follows:
a. Transactions between the Bank and Its Related Parties

Transactions for the Year*3 Balance at End of Year

Thousands Thousands
- of U.S. - of U.S.
Millions of Yen Dollars Millions of Yen Dollars
Related Party Account Classification*2 2025 2024 2025 2025 2024 2025
Department Store Fujisaki Co., Ltd.*! Loans and bills discounted ¥3,709 ¥3,682 $24,806 ¥4,200 ¥3,664 $28,089
Investment securities
(corporate bonds) 1,200 1,200 8,025 1,200 1,200 8,025
Customers’ liabilities for
acceptances and
guarantees 431 382 2,882 430 439 2,875
Fuji Styling Co., Ltd.* Loans and bills discounted 170 172 1,136 170 170 1,136
Fujisaki Agency Co., Ltd.*! Customers’ liabilities for
acceptances and
guarantees 1,174 1,175 7,851 1,200 1,200 8,025

Notes:*" Company whose voting rights are majority owned by a director or his close relatives (including subsidiaries of

such company)

* Terms are substantially the same as for similar transactions with third parties.
* Amounts of transactions were reported at the average balance for the period.



b. Transactions between Consolidated Subsidiaries and Their Related Parties

Transactions for the Year Balance at End of Year
Thousands Thousands
- of U.S. - of U.S.
Millions of Yen Dollars Millions of Yen Dollars
Related Party Account Classification*2 2025 2024 2025 2025 2024 2025
Department Store Fujisaki Co., Ltd.*' Fees and commissions ¥48 ¥43 $321

Notes:*' Company whose voting rights are majority owned by a director or his close relatives (including subsidiaries of
such company)
*2 Terms are substantially the same as for similar transactions with third parties.

31. DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Revenues from contracts with customers on a disaggregated basis for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, were
as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2025 2024 2025
Income ¥171,553 ¥150,552 $1,147,358
Of which:

Fees and commissions 23,705 21,410 158,540
Of which:

Deposit taking and lending business 8,481 6,917 56,721

Foreign exchanges 5,795 5,563 38,757

Securities related business 2,095 1,783 14,011

Agency business 2,539 2,641 16,981

Custody, safe-deposit box business 83 86 555

Trust fees 27 20 180

Revenue based on ASBJ Statement No. 10, “Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments” is included in the above.
Useful information in understanding revenue from contracts with customers is omitted since it is immaterial.

32. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Description of Reportable Segments
The Companies are principally engaged in the banking business and also leasing business and other financial services.
The reportable segments of the Companies are the segments for which separate financial information is available, and
are subject to periodic review by the chief operating decision maker to determine the allocation of management resources
and assess performance.

Segment information is omitted because the reportable segments of the Companies consist only of the “Banking”
segment and since the “Other” segment is immaterial.

Related Information for the Years Ended March 31, 2025 and 2024
Information by Service Line

Millions of Yen

2025
Securities
Loan Investment Lease Other Total
Ordinary income from
external customers ¥60,500 ¥68,508 ¥11,777 ¥30,768 ¥171,553
Millions of Yen
2024
Securities
Loan Investment Lease Other Total
Ordinary income from
external customers ¥51,971 ¥61,495 ¥11,749 ¥25,336 ¥150,552
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2025
Securities
Loan Investment Lease Other Total
Ordinary income from
external customers $404,628 $458,186 $78,765 $205,778 $1,147,358
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Information about Geographical Area

Information about geographical areas is omitted because the Companies conduct banking and other related activities
only in Japan and do not have foreign subsidiaries or foreign branches.

Information about Major Customers

Information about major customers is not presented because there are no customers who account for over 10% of
ordinary income.

Information about Asset Impairment Losses

Information about asset impairment losses for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, is omitted because the only
reportable segment is “Banking” and “Other” is immaterial.

33. NET INCOME PER SHARE
Basic net income per share (‘EPS”) for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, is as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of Shares Yen U.S. Dollars
Net Income .
Attributable to Weighted-Average EPS
Year Ended March 31, 2025 Owners of the Parent Shares
Basic EPS—Net income attributable
to common stockholders ¥39,270 74,164 ¥529.50 $3.54
Year Ended March 31, 2024
Basic EPS—Net income attributable
to common stockholders ¥29,802 74,059 ¥402.40

The Bank’s shares held by the directors’ compensation BIP trust that are recorded as treasury stock under “Equity” are
included in the treasury stock to be deducted when computing the average number of shares during the fiscal year for
the calculation of basic EPS.

The average number of shares of the treasury stock deducted in computing basic EPS was 616 thousand shares and
645 thousand shares, for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Diluted EPS for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024, is not shown because there were no potential shares.

34. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Cash Dividends
At the Bank’s general meeting of stockholders held on June 27, 2025, the Bank’s stockholders approved the following
appropriations of retained earnings:

Thousands of
Millions of Yen  U.S. Dollars

Year-end cash dividends, ¥97.50
($0.652) per share ¥7,295 $48,789

Note: The above total amount of cash dividends includes dividends for the Bank’s shares held by BIP trust in an amount
of ¥62 million ($414 thousand).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of The 77 Bank, Lid.:
whudit of Consolidated Financial Statements>
Opinian

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The ¥7 Bank. Ltd. and its consolidated
subsidiaries (the "Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2025, and tha
consclidated statement of incomae, consclidaled statement of comprahansive income, consolidatad
statemant of changas in equily and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial staternants, including a summary of significant accounting policies, all
expragsed in Japanese yan.

In gasr opinion, the accompanying consclidated financial statemants present fairly, in all material
respacis, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of March 31, 2025, and its consolidated
financial parformance and Hs consolidated cash fiows for the year then ended in accordance with
sccounting principles genarally acceplad in Japan.

Convenience Translation

Cwr audit also comprehanded the ranslation of Japanese yen amounis into LS. dollar amounts and, in
our opinion, such transiation has been made in accordance with the baslks slated in Note 1 o the
consobdaled financial statements. Swch U.S. dollar amounis are prasenied solely for the comvenience of
readers gulside Japan,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audil in accondance with auditing standards ganarally acceptad in Japan. Our
responsibiities under those standards ane further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Auwdit
of the Consolidated Financial Statemants seclion of our report. We ara independent of the Group in
accordance with the provisions of the Code of Professional Ethics in Japan, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responashities as auditors. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtakned is
sufficient and sppropaals to provide a basis for our opm@nEon.

Key Audit Matter

A ey adi matier is a matter thal, in our professional judgment, wis of mos! significance in our awdi of
the consolidated financial statements of the cument period, Tha malter was addrassed in the coniexd of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinicn theresn, and wa
do not provide a separale opinion on the matler.
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Approprateness of Debbor Classfication for Lange Dablors in Determination of Resense lor Losn Losgaes

How the Key Audit Matber Was

discounted of ¥6,170.5 bilon in the consolidated
talance sheat as of March 31, 2025,

As described in Note 2, "Summary of Significant
Apcounting Polcies—Resarye for Loan Losses” 1o
the consolidated financial statements, the resensa
for loan kosses |s deterrmined basad on deblor
classifications. The deblor classifications are
judged comprehensively considering faciors such
as the debtor's cash managemsent, the repayment
abifity based on cash flows, profitability projections,
famsibility of managemen improvemen] plans and
status of suppost from financial instilutions,

The Group astablishes a mathod to delarmina the
resarva for loan ksses to be appled Tor each
debior classification. Therelore, delermnation of
the debler clagsification for large deblors may have
a material impact on the amount of the: resene for
kaan losses,

In particular, when the debtor classification is
determined based on the feasibility of management
improvemant plans, il is highly dependent upon
future satlooks swch as the profitability projection
and the feasibility of cost-cutting messures.

Becaute thesa future outlooks require asswmplions
about changes in the deblor's finencial
parfommance, such as industny demand trands. the
estimation has a high degree of uncariainty and
requires significant judgmeants made by
managemant.

Therefore, we identified the appropriatensss of
certain large debiors’ debior classifications which
are highly depandent upon the profitabilit
projection and the feasibility of cost-cutting

measures in management improvement plans as a
key audil matter,

Kay Audil Matier Description Addreszad In tha Audit
The Group recognized a resene for kean losses of | Our audit procedures related 1o this key audit
¥E8.3 billion b loans and bills matier included the following, among othars:

(1) Test of the affectivenass of inermal controls;

O We tested the effectivensss of inlemal
controls over the review and approval of
the: appropriate deblor classification for
large debbors v accordance with the Group
sel-assessment standand by inguitng of
thi Cradif Supervision Division, as a
reviiw control funciion, and the Audit &
inspection Diviskon and inspecting tha
supporting matarials.

T We tested the effectiveness of intemnal
controls over the accuracy of debiors'
financial infoemation wusad in intermal
conirols referrad 1o above by Inguiring of
thi Cradit Supenasion Divisson and
ingpascting the supporting malessals,

(2) Tast of the appropriatenass of the deblor
classification:

I We evaluaied managerment's assumplons
about future outiooks of the deblors
selected for testing, such as the profability
prajection and the faasiblity of cosl-cutting
rREatUres in management improvemeant
plans, by inquiring of the Credil
Supendision Division, conducting a
comparative analysis with the labest
financial periormance, eic., and inspecting
thia gell-aasassmant related material
preparad by the Group and other maberiaks,

3 We evalualad the reasonablaness of
Improvamien
are based by axamining consistency with

available extermal information, such as.
statistical data,

Other Information

Crthier information comprises the information inclueded in the Group's disclosure documents
accomparying the audited consolidated financial statements, but dees not include the consolidated

financial sialements and our sudiors report theneon.

W determined that no such information existed and therefore, we did not perform any work therean.




Responsibilities of Management and the Audit and Supervisory Committes for the Consolidated
Financial Statemants

Managemsent is respansible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
slalarments in accordante with accounting principles ganarally sccepled in Japan, and for such inernal
condral as management datermines is necessary 10 enable the preparation of conscldated financial
staterments that are free from materdal misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or enor,

in prepaning the consolidated fnancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a golng concem, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related 1o going concem in
accordancs with acoounting principhes ganarally accepted in Japan and wsing the going concam basis of
accounling unless management aithar infands 1o Bguidate the Group or o ceass operations, of has no
realistic alliemative but to do 50,

Thee Audit and Supenvisory Committes is responsible for oversesing the Directors’ execution of duties
relaling 1o the design and operaling efectivenass of the controls over the Group's financial reporting
Process.

Auditor's Responslbilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Siatemants

Our abjectives are (o obiain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whobe are free from malerial misstatement, whether due 1o trsud or effod, and 10 iSswe an auditors
rapart that includas our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bul is nol a
guarantas that an audit conducted in accordance with audiing standards gencrally accepted in Japan
will always delect a materal misstatement when it exists. Misstaterments can arise from fraud or emor
and ane considersd matedal i, individually of in the aggregate, thay could reasonably be axpected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial stalaments.

Ag part of an sudil in accordance with auditing standards generalty accepied in Japan, we exerciss
professional pedgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, Wa also;

= kfantify and assess the nsks of matenal misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whather dus to freud or emor, design and parform audit procedures responsive 1o those rfsks. The
proceduras asdectad depend on the auditor's judgment. In addition, we obtain aedit evidence thal s
sufficient and appropriata to provide 8 basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a maderial
rissiatemant resulling from fraud & higher than for one resulling from ermer, as fraud may ivolve
collusion, fongery, inbentional omissions, migrepresentations, of the override of inlermal control.

= Qibtain, when performing risk assessment procedures, an ungerstanding of inernal contral rebesant bo
ther ausdit in order o design audil precedures that are appropriate in the circumsiances, but not for the
purpose of axpressing an opinion on the affectivensas of the Group's internal confnol,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounling policies used and the reasonablenass of actounting
astimates and related disciosures mada by managamaeant.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounteng and,
baséd on the audil evidence obiained, whether a material umcertainty exists related 1o svents of
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability o continue as a going concamn. I we
conclude thal a matenal uncenainty exists, we ane required o draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the relatled disclosures in the consolidated financial stalements or, if such disclosures are inadequals,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up o this date of our
auditor's reporl. However, future events or conditions may causa tha Group 1o ceasa o confinue as a
GOing COnESEn

+ Evalmie whether the overall presentation and disclosures of the consolidated fnancial stalemants ang
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepied in Japan, &s wall as tha overall
prasentaton, siructure and content of the consolidated financial stalemants, inchuding the disclosunas,

and whather the consoldated fnancial statements reprasent the underlying transactons and events n
a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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+ Plan and perorm the group audit 1o oblain sulficient appropriate audit evidence ragarding the financial
information of the antities or business units within the Group as a basis for formang an apinion on the
group financial statemeants. W are responsibie for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
wirk performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain solaly responsible for our udit opinion.

¥We communicate with the Audit and Supervisory Commitiea regarding, amang othar matiers, the

planned scope and timing of the audil and significant audi findings. including any significant deficiencias
in intarnal control that we identify during ouwr audit

Wi also provide the Audit and Supervisory Commities with a statement that we have compied with
redovant ethical reguirements regarding independenca, and communicate with it all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably ba thought to bear an our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken o eliménals threats or safeguards applied,

From the matiers communicated wilh the Audit and Superdsory Commities, wa delarming those matlers
that ware of most significanca in the aud® of the consolidated financial statlements of tha current period
and are therefora the key audi matiers. We describe these matiers in our audilor's repon unbess law or
regulation preciudes public disclosure aboul the matter or whan, in extremely fre creumstances, we
determine that a matter showld nol be communicated in owr report because the adverse consequences of
doing 50 would reascnably be expecied 1o sutweaigh the public inlerest benefits of such communication,

cFee-Relaied Information=

Fees for audil and other sendices for the year ended March 31, 2025, which wera charged by us and our
network firms to The 77 Bank, Lid. and its subsidiaries were ¥85 milion and 822 million, respactivaly.

Interest Required to Be Disclosed by the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan

Dur firm and its designaled engagemen] pariners do not have any interest in the Group which is required
to be disclosed pursuant to the provisions of the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan.

Dejoltte Towche Tohnwtew LLC

August 7, 2025
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